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Independent Auditors’ Report
The Shareholders of Kumari Bank Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kumari Bank Limited, which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31* Ashad 2074 (corresponding July 15, 2017), and the Profit and Loss
Account, Statements of Change in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
‘summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes to Accounts.

‘Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements.
Management has prepared financial statements in accordance with regulatory requirements as
stipulated by Nepal Rastra Bank and not in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS).

Auditor’s Responsibility

"Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based en our audit in
accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement,

*An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
.design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also _icludes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to -
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The applicable Financial Reporting Framework (FRF) for the bank was changed to Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) from Nepal Accounting Standard (previous local GAAP)
‘effective from fiscal year starting 17 July 2015, Change in Financial Reporting Framework
required transition to Nepal Financial Reporting Standard as at 17 July 2014 and presentatjon of at
least three statements of financial position, two statements of comprehensive income, two separate

i —e~zer of
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income statement, if presented, two statements of cash flow and two statements of changes in
equity and related notes, including comprehensive information. However, the accompanying
financial statements have not been prepared based on the transitional provision of Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) which requires identification, restatements, presentations and
disclosures of financial information based on the new accounting policy as per NFRS.

The cumulative effect of not restating, presenting and disclosing financial information based on
transitional provision of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards is uncertain and could be material
and pervasive.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for cumulative
effect of not restating financial items and making additional disclosures as required by first time
adopter of NFRS to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the financial statements which have not been prepared in accordance with NFRS.

Report on the Requirements of the Companies Act 2063, Banks and Financial Institution Act
2063

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the balance sheet, the profit and
loss account and cash flow statement, prepared in the format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank, are
in agreement with the books of accounts of the bank; and proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the bank. In our opinion, the returns received from the branches were
«adequate for the purpose of the audit though the statements are independently not audited.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the bank has maintained
adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in accordance
with the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and from our examination
of the books of accounts of the bank necessary for the purpose of our audit, we have not come
across cases where Board of Directors or any employees of the bank have acted contrary to the
provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation relating to the accounts or caused loss or
damage to the bank and violated any directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner to
‘jeopardize the interest and security of the bank, its depositors and investors.

Except our opinion regarding the financial statements not prepared in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework required for the fiscal year, the financial statements have
been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with reporting framework as per the
sregulatory requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank. “

ol

«Date : December 04,2018 CA. Anup K. Stresthg
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal Managing Partner '*" <
/
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Disclosure Under Basel Ill as at 15 July 2017

(For F/Y 2016/17)

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy
Tier | Capital and a breakdown of its components

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Particular Current Year
a Paid Up Equity Share Capital 5,969,495,823
b Irredeemable Non- cumulative preferenece share -
C Share premium -
d Proposed Bonus Equity Share 913,289,573
e Statutory General Reserves 1,076,611,243
f Retained Earnings 6,860,581
g Un-audited current period profit ( after all provision including tax) -
h Bond Redemption Reserve -
i Capital Adjustment Reserve 30,494,232
j Dividend Equalization Reserves -
k Other free Reserve (31,168,452)

Total Tier | Capital 7,965,583,000

Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Particular Current Year
a Cumulative and/or Reedemable Preference Share -
b Subordinated term debt -
C Hybrid Capital Instuments -
d General Loan Loss provision 510,081,582
e Exchange Equalisation Reserve 35,308,742
f Investment Adjustment Reserve 5,868,392
g Assets Revaluation Reserve -
h Other Reserve (Deferred Tax Reserve) -
Total of Tier 2 Capital 551,258,715

Deductions from Capital:

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Particular Current Year
i Less: Purchase of land and building in excess of limit and unutilised (109,591,224)
Total Deductions from Core Capital (109,591,224)
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Total Qualifying Capital

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Particular Current Year

a Tier | Capital 7,855,991,776

b Tier Il Capital 551,258,715
Total Capital Fund 8,407,250,491

Capital Adequacy Ratios

S.N. Particular Current Year (%)

a Tier 1 Capital to total RWA 13.55

b Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 + Tier 2) to Total RWA 14.50

Bank's Internal Approach to Access Capital Adequacy

Bank's mangement regularly reviews Bank's Capital Adequacy. Plans and budgets are prepared on the basis of
current and projected capital adequacy. Bank's plan and investment decision are based on the level of capital
adequacy it feels comfortable.

Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Particular Current Year

1 Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 53,946,801,262
2 Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 1,756,553,827
3 Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 123,192,752

Total

55,826,547,842

Risk weighted exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Particular Current Year
1 Claims on government and central bank 80,337,964
2 Claims on other official entities -
3 Claims on banks 1,298,339,027
4 Claims on corporate and securities firms 22,824,497,908
5 Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 8,348,895,233
6 Claims secured by residential properties 2,936,422,225
7 Claims secured by commercial real estate 1,137,109,641
8 Past due claims 508,444,312
9 High risk claims 6,294,355,321
10 Other Assets 1,242,088,650
11 Off balance sheet items 9,276,310,980
Total 53,946,801,262
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Total risk weighted exposure calculation table -

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Particular Current Year

1 Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 53,946,801,262

2 Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 1,756,553,827

3 Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 123,192,752
Total Risk Weighted Exposure 55,826,547,842
Add: 3% of the total RWE due to non compliance to Disclosure Requirement
Addition to RWE as per supervisiory review (3%) 1,674,796,435
Add RWE equvalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 4 % of gross income. 464,590,488
Add: ...% of Total Deposit due to Insufficient Liquid Assets

Total Risk Weighted Exposure (After Bank's adjustment of Pillar 11) 57,965,934,765

Amount of NPAs (Non Performing Assets) both gross and net

Current Year's Amount in Rs.

S.N. Non Performing Assets Gross Amount Net Amount
1 Restructured / Rescheduled 57,532,605 50,341,029.01
2 Substandard 157,224,969 117,918,726.98
3 Doubtful 148,683,357 74,341,678.38
4 Loss 476,200,283 -
Total 839,641,214 242,601,434.36

NPA Ratios

S.N. | Particular Current Year (%)
1 Gross NPA to gross advances 1.86%
2 Net NPA to net advances 0.55%

Movement of Non Performing Assets

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Non Performing Assets Previous Year Change Current Year
1 Restructured / Rescheduled - 57,532,605 57,532,605
2 Substandard 31,394,674 125,830,296 157,224,969
3 Doubtful 21,764,973 126,918,383 148,683,357
4 Loss 292,196,512 184,003,771 476,200,283

Total 345,356,160 494,285,054 839,641,214
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Write Off of Loan and Interest Suspense

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Particular Current Year
1 Loan Write Off -
2 Interest Suspense Write Off -

Movement of Loan Loss Provision and Interest Suspense

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Particular Previous Year Change Current Year
Loan Loss Provision 624,939,787 482,181,574 1,107,121,361
2 Interest Suspense 141,107,028 133,288,210 274,395,239

Details of additional loan loss provision

Current year's amount in Rs.

S.N. Loan Classification Additional provision
1 Good 65,501,966
2 Restructured / Rescheduled (6,747)
3 Substandard 12,742,031
4 Doubtful 58,071,297
5 Loss (106,789,783)

Total 29,518,763

Segregation of investment portfolio

Amount in Rs.

S.N. Investment category Current Year
1 Held for trading -
2 Held to maturity 7,469,759,563
3 Available for sale 54,926,303
Total 7,524,685,866
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Risk Management Function

Risk Assessment/Mitigation Practices at Kumari Bank Limited

Considering the need to establish effective Risk Management and Risk Mitigation practices at Kumari Bank
Ltd, we have developed a system of continuous improvement of processes wherein each member of the Bank
works towards balancing profitability with prudence. The system encompasses all banking functions from client
interface, to back office operation, to the strategic decision formulated by the management committees and the
Board of Directors. Each area has its own check and balance procedure to assess and mitigate risks involved.
The practices thus observed are as follows:

KBL Organization Structure

The bank's lending approval authority is divided into two distinct units, namely Business and Risk Management.
While the Business Unit concentrates more on optimum utility of assets, every lending decision of this Unit is re-
assessed and revaluated by the Risk Management Unit for final approval. The Risk Management Unit applies its
objective judgment on risk variables deemed appropriate in each instance of lending decision. For this purpose,
the Risk Management Unit has two distinct subunits, the Risk Approval Department, which facilities final
lending decision after duly adjusting risks as mitigated to an acceptable level, and the Credit Administration and
Control Department , which evaluates the endorsed paperwork prior to actual sanction, and also after it.

Depending upon the volume of loans and the nature of risk associated, lending decision are subject to validation
and approval by various levels of the hierarchy, in which some lending decision are to be approved by the CEO,
and other by even the Board of Directors as each case may require.

Risk Measurement Criteria and Mitigation Process

Credit risks are evaluated from the initial customer interface on an array of risk variables by the Credit Policy
Guidelines of the Bank, as well as on the individual intuition of experienced officers. As proposals are escalated
for approval, judgmental and analytical criteria become broader and more conceptual.

Kumari Bank Ltd. uses the best practices in banking, to make its operation secure through a system of procedural
crosschecking mechanism in each operational transaction. An Internal Audit Department, continuously functions
to alert bank personnel to the meticulousness required in handling operations in every functional department. A
credit monitoring system is well established in the Bank, which periodically checks on credit quality, compliance,
and level of risk exposure. This practice has created a continuous learning and improvement environment, and
the Bank's efficiency goal has been to move towards the most prudent practices in the industry.

Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM -

Particular Eligible CRM
Deposit with Bank & Cash Margin 265,643,269
Total 265,643,269
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Independent Auditors’ Report
The Sharcholders of Kumari Bank Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Kumari Bank Limited
(the “Bank™), and its subsidiary and associate (the “Group™), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 32" Ashad, 2075 (corresponding July 16, 2018),
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of change in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated
statement of distributable profit for the year then ended, and significant accounting policies,
notes to account and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.:

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit in
accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Malters Paragragh below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Opinion

. In our opinion, the financial statements of Bank and the consolidated financial statements of the
Group present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Kumari Bank Limited
as at 32™ Ashad, 2075 (Corresponding July 16, 2018) and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and
Company Act 2063.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of a subsidiary whose
financial statements reflect total assets of NPR 200 Million and net assets of NPR199.69 Million
as at 16 July 2018 and net loss of NPR 0.31 Million and net cash inflows amounting to NPR 200
Million for the year then ended.These financial statements and other financial information have
been audited by other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by the management, and
our opinion on the financial statements in so far as it reflects to the accounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries as based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the financial statements and our report on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect of our reliance
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit, In our opinion, consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated statement of profit or loss account, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of change in equity, consolidated statement of
cash flows, consolidated statement of distributable profit for the year then ended, and significant
accounting policies, notes to account and other explanatory notes, prepared in the format
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank, are in agreement with the books of accounts of the bank and its
subsidiaries and associate included in the Group; and proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the bank.

In our opinion the returns from the branches are adequate for the purpose of the audit though the
statements are independently not audited.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the bank has maintained

adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in accordance
with the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the bank necessary for our audit purpose, we have not
come across cases where board of directors or any employees of the bank have acted contrary to
the provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the bank
and violated any directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner to put at risk the interest
and security of the bank, its depositiors and investors.

Date : 09 January 2019 CA. Anup K.Shrestha
Place : Kathmandu, Nepal Managing Partner
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 16th July 2018

1. BANK

1.1

1.2

1.3

General

Kumari Bank Limited (hereinafter referred to as “The Bank") is a public limited company, incorporated on 10th
December 1999 and domiciled in Nepal. The registered office of the Bank is located at Durbarmarga, Kathmandu,
Nepal. The Bank carries out commercial banking activities and other financial services in Nepal under the license
from Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB), the Central Bank of Nepal, as “Ka Class" (Class A) licensed financial institution. The
Bank is listed in Nepal Stock Exchange Limited for public trading of stocks.

Financial Statements

The Financial Statement of Bank for the year ended 16 July, 2018 comprises Statement of Financial Position, Statement
of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash
Flows, Notes to the Financial Statements, Significant Accounting Policies of the Company and Statement of Financial
Position and reconciliation as at the transition date (i.e. 17 July, 2016)

Principal Activities and Operations
Bank

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide full-fledged wide range of commercial banking services including,
agency services, trade finance services, card services, e-commerce products and services, remittance and bullion
trading services to its customers, provided through wide branch networks, extension counters, ATMs with latest
technological banking support services.

Subsidiary and Associates

Ownership as on:
Subsidiary Principal Activities
16" July 2018 15 July 2017

The Subsidiary is opened to Provide merchant/investment

banking services such as Management of public offerings,
Kumari portfolio management, underwriting of securities,
Capital management of mutual fund schemes, depository 100% -
Limited participant's service under Central Depository Service

(CDS) and other merchant banking services. The final

approval from Securities Board of Nepal is under process.

Ownership as on:
16™ July 2018 15" July 2017

Associate Principal Activities

The Associate is of the bank is microfinance banking

National institute with license to operate as a D class financial
Microfinance | institution from Nepal Rastra Bank. The Principal Activity
Bittiya of the associate is to provide one window financial 20% 20%
Sanstha solutions to the customers with wide range of banking
Limited product and services customized to the requirement of
remote area customer needs.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of Bank for the year ended 16th July, 2018 comprising Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the
Financial Statements (including Significant Accounting Policies), have been prepared in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of all applicable laws and regulations.
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Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements
a)  Reporting Period

The Bank has prepared the financial statements for the first time in accordance with NFRS depicting financial
performance for FY 2017/18 and financial position of 16" July 2018 and the comparatives of FY 2016/17.
Hence the date of transition to NFRS is 17" July, 2016. The comparative figures including the opening balance
on the date of transition have been re-classified and re-measured as per NFRS.

b)  Responsibility for Financial Statements

The preparation and presentation of Financial Statements including consolidated financial statements is the
responsibility of the Board of Directors as per the governing provisions.

) Approval of Financial Statements by Directors

The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized to issue by the Board of Directors vide its
resolution dated 9 January 2019 and recommended for its approval by the Annual General Meeting of the
shareholders.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of Bank and Group are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Bank operates. There was no change in Bank's presentation and functional
currency during the year under review.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ due to these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have
most significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows:

2.4.1 Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of Bank's ability to continue as a going concern and satisfied that it has the
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may provide significant doubt upon Bank's ability to continue as a going concern and they do not
intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue to be prepared on
the going concern basis.

2.4.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position can be
derived from active markets, they are derived from observable market data. However, if this is not available, judgment
is required to establish fair values. The valuation of financial instruments is described in more detail in Note 3.4.

2.4.3 Impairment of Financial Assets — Loans and Advances

The Bank review it's individually significant loans and advances at each statement of financial position date to assess
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement. The bank has conducted objective evidence
test for individual impairment through different parameters like inability to meet loan agreements, substantial drop
in profits/ turnover, significant adverse cash flows, significant adverse net worth situation, problematic borrower
financial position, etc. Mainly, management judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of the
expected future cash flows for determination of the impairment loss.
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These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future
changes to the impairment allowance.

Loans and advances that have been assessed individually and found to be not impaired and all individually insignificant
loans and advances are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similar risk characteristics, to determine
whether provision should be made due to incurred loss events for which there is objective evidence, but the effects of
which are not yet evident. The collective assessment takes in to account data from the loan portfolio such as levels of
arrears, credit quality, portfolio size etc. and judgments based on current economic conditions.

Loans and advances have been impaired as the higher of amount derived as per the norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra
Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39, as per Carve-out pronounced by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal on 20th September 2018.

The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in Note 4.6 and 4.7 to the financial statements.

2.4.4 Impairment of Investments measured through OCI

Bank reviews its investments classified as available for sale, at each reporting date to assess whether they are impaired.
Objective evidence that an available for sale debt security is impaired includes among other things significant financial
difficulty of the issuer, a breach of contract such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments etc. The
Bank also records impairment charges on available for sale equity investments where there is significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below their cost. The determination of what is 'significant' or 'prolonged' requires judgment.

2.4.5 Taxation

The Bank is subject to income tax and judgment is required to determine the total provision for current, deferred and
other taxes due to the uncertainties that exist with respect to the interpretation of the applicable tax laws, at the time
of preparation of these Financial Statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilized. Judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits, together with future tax
planning strategies.

Details on deferred tax assets/liability are disclosed in Note 4.15 to the financial statements.

2.4.6 Defined Benefit Plans

The cost of the defined benefit obligations and the present value of their obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations.

The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases, mortality rates
and possible future liability increases if any. Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to
uncertainty.

All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the average interest rates of Nepal government
bonds with maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is
based on publicly available mortality tables. Future salary increases are based on expected future salary increase rates
of Bank and attrition rate are based on the past period's attrition average rates.

2.4.7 Fair Value of Property, Plant and Equipment

The freehold land and buildings of the bank are not reflected at fair value and no revaluation has been carried at
the reporting date. Under NFRS 1, a first-time adopter may elect to use a previous GAAP revaluation of an item
of property, plant and equipment at, or before, the date of transition to NFRSs as deemed cost at the date of the
revaluation, if the revaluation was, at the date of the revaluation, broadly comparable to:
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a. Fair value; or

b. Cost or depreciated cost in accordance with NFRSs, adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or
specific price index

Previous GAAP has been considered the fair value for Property and Equipment on the basis that these assets value are
comparable to fair value.

2.4.8 Useful Life-time of the Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized on cost model. Cost includes the purchase price and other directly
attributable costs to the acquisition of individual asset item. Bank reviews the residual values, useful lives and methods
of depreciation of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date. Judgment of the management is exercised in
the estimation of these values, rates, methods and hence they are subject to uncertainty.

a) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets except land are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation. Acquisition cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Assets with a value less than Rs. 10,000 are charged off as a revenue expense irrespective of its useful life in
the year of purchase.

Leasehold improvements are capitalized at cost and amortized over the period of five years. The amount of
amortization is charged as revenue expenses.

b) Computer Software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of cost incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software and are amortized over their useful life estimated as 5 years from the date of acquisition.

Depreciation on newly acquired property and equipments are charged from the next month of booking.
Depreciation of property and equipment ceases when it is derecognized at the time of its disposal.

2.4.9 Commitments and Contingencies

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent liabilities are
possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where the
transfer of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognized
in the Statement of Financial Position but are disclosed unless they are remote.

2.4.10 Provisions for Liabilities and Contingencies

2.5.

2.6.

The Bank receives legal claims against it in the normal course of business. Management has made judgments as to the
likelihood of any claim succeeding in making provisions. The time of concluding legal claims is uncertain, as is the
amount of possible outflow of economic benefits.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The bank has changed its accounting policies, wherever required, to ensure compliance with NFRS. Detailed
accounting policies are mentioned in Note 3. The effect of change in accounting policy at the date of transition has
been given to the retained earnings (and reserves, if applicable).

New Standards in issue but not yet effective

There have been amendment to the Standards issued by IASB and applicability of the new Standards has been notified
for IFRS. But, the amendments and new standards become applicable only when ASB-Nepal pronounces them. The
new Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are set out below. The
Bank will adopt these standards when they become effective.
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IFRS 9- Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 states a logical principle base to classify financial assets and financial liabilities which is driven by
cash flow characteristics and the business model in which an assets or liability is held. Further this standard
recommends the assessment of impairment based on more timely recognition of expected credit losses and
entities are required to account for expected credit losses from the initial recognition of financial instruments
and it lowers the threshold for recognition of full life time expected losses by aligning financial accounting
treatment with risk management activities.

FRS 9 has become effective from 1 January 2018 and has an effect on classification and measurement of the
Bank's financial assets. [IFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of work on replacement of IAS 39 and applies
to classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities.

IFRS 15- Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction Contracts. Financial instruments, leases and
insurance contracts are out of scope and so this Standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Bank. IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRS 16- Leases

The IASB issued IFRS 16- Leases to replace IAS 17- Leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognize a right to
use asset and a liability for future payments arising from a lease contract. Accounting requirements for lessor
remain aligned to the current approach under IAS 17. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019.

New standards and interpretation not adapted

NFRS 1 First- time adoption of Nepal Accounting Standards allows first time adopters certain exemptions from the
retrospective application of certain NFRS.

The Bank has elected to disclose the following amounts prospectively from the date of transition:

L. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the fair value of the plan assets and the surplus or deficit
in the plan; and

il. The experience adjustments arising on the plan liabilities and the plan assets.

iii.  The Bank has designated unquoted equity instruments held at 16" July 2018 as investments measured at fair
value through OCI.

Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Bank considers the
discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal and external factors have been
considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the cash flows of company. The Bank has a policy to treat
share/debenture issue expenses up to 1% of share/debentures issue price as immaterial. Considering those expenses as
immaterial and impracticable to determine reliably, same has not been considered in computation of effective interest
rate as per Carve-out (optional) pronounced on 20th September 2018.

Employee benefits has been determined by considering discount rate as the average yield on government bonds issued
during the period having maturity of five years or more.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each material class
of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions too are
presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by
an Accounting Standard.
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2.10. Comparative Information

The Financial Statement of the Bank provides comparative information in respect of previous periods. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied by Bank with those of the previous financial year in accordance with NAS
01 Presentation of Financial Statements, except those which had to be changed as a result of application of the new
NFRS. Further, comparative information is reclassified wherever necessary to comply with the current presentation.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial
Statements, and deviations if any have been disclosed accordingly.

3.1.

3.2.

Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of Bank have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material
items in the Statement of Financial Position:

>
>

>

Available for sale investments (quoted) are measured at fair value.

Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation
less the fair value of the plan assets.

Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortized cost at measured using a rate that is a close
approximation of effective interest rate.

Basis of consolidation

a.

Business Combinations and Goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as per the requirements of Nepal
Accounting Standard - NFRS 03 (Business Combinations). The Bank measures goodwill as the fair value of
the consideration transferred including the recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree,
less the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
all measured as of the acquisition date. When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is immediately
recognized in the profit or loss.

The Bank elects on a transaction-by transaction basis whether to measure non-controlling interest at its fair
value, or at its proportionate share of the recognized amount of the identifiable net assets, at the acquisition date.
The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss. Transactions costs, other than those associated with the
issue of debt or equity securities, that the Bank incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed
as incurred.

The Bank has applied Exemptions for NFRS 3 as stated in Appendix C as below:

A first-time adopter may elect not to apply NFRS 3 retrospectively to past business combinations (business
combinations that occurred before the date of transition to NFRSs). However, if a first-time adopter restates
any business combination to comply with NFRS 3 it shall restate all later business combinations and shall also
apply NFRS 10 from that same date.

Non-controlling interest (NCI)

Non-controlling interest (NCI), also known as minority interest, is an ownership position whereby a shareholder
owns less than 50% of outstanding shares and has no control over decisions. Non-controlling interests are
measured at the net asset value of entities and do not account for potential voting rights.

For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at fair
value.

Changes in group interest in subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control are accounted for transactions of
owners in the capacity of owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interest are based on proportionate amount
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of net assets of subsidiary.

Since, the subsidiary is 100% owned, there is no case of NCI for the bank.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Bank. The Bank is presumed to control an investee when it
is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee. At each reporting date the Bank reassesses whether it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more elements of control
mentioned above.

The Financial Statements of Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Bank and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. The Financial Statements of
the Bank's Subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as per the Bank, using consistent accounting
policies.

The cost of acquisition of a Subsidiary is measured as the fair value of the consideration, including contingent
consideration, given on the date of transfer of title. The acquired identifiable assets, liabilities are measured
at their fair values at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to the initial measurement, the Bank continues to
recognize the investments in Subsidiaries at cost.

When a Subsidiary is acquired or sold during the year, operating results of such Subsidiary is included from the
date of acquisition or to the date of disposal.

This Subsidiary of the Bank has been incorporated in Nepal.
Loss of Control

When the Bank loses control over a Subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the former subsidiary
from the consolidated statement of financial position. The Bank recognizes any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at its fair value when control is lost and subsequently accounts for it and for any amounts
owed by or to the former subsidiary in accordance with relevant NFRSs. That fair value shall be regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset in accordance with relevant NFRS or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture. The Bank recognizes the gain
or loss associated with the loss of control attributable to the former controlling interest.

Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

A special purpose vehicle/entity is a “bankruptcy-remote entity" that a parent company uses to isolate or
securitize assets and it often holds this off-balance sheet. Some also call this a “bankruptcy-remote entity" or
“variable interest entities" since its operations are limited to the acquisition and financing of specific assets
as a method of isolating risk. A special purpose vehicle/entity is a subsidiary company with an asset/liability
structure and legal status that makes its obligations secure, even if the parent company goes bankrupt.

The Bank does not have any special purpose entity.
Transaction elimination on consolidation

Intra group balances and transactions, any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra group
transactions, are eliminating in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains/losses arising
from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investments to the extent of group
interest of investee.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks, placements with banks and money at call and
at short notice with original maturity less than three months from the date of acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used for short term commitments.

Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.
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3.4. Financial Assets and financial liabilities

a.

Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date that Bank becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes 'regular way trades'. Regular way trade
means purchases or sales of financial assets that required delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

The classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics
and the management's intention in acquiring them.

Classification and Measurement
Financial Assets

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to acquisition or issue of such financial instruments except in the case of such financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as per the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Instruments

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets
At the inception, a financial asset is classified into one of the following:

a.

b.
c.
d.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

i. Financial assets held for trading

ii. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Loans and Receivables

Financial Assets available for Sale

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

1.

Financial Assets Held for Trading

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or
position taking. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by Bank that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standards NAS 39
(Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized in 'Net trading income'. Dividend income is recorded in 'Net trading income' when the
right to receive the payment has been established.

Bank evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to determine whether the intention
to sell them in the near future is still appropriate. When Bank is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management's intention to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, Bank
may elect to reclassify these financial assets.

Financial assets held for trading include instruments such as government securities and equity instruments that
have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
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il. Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Bank designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following circumstances:

> Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets

> The assets are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy

> The asset contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise have been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss is recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in 'Net gain or loss on financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or losses' in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned is accrued under 'Interest income', using the effective
interest rate method, while dividend income is recorded under 'Other operating income' when the right to receive the
payment has been established.

The Bank has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities which the Bank has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After the initial measurement, held to maturity
financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate, less impairment. The
amortization is included in 'Interest income' in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment of such
investments are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Loans and Receivables from Customers

Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market, other than:

> Those that the Bank intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that the Bank, upon initial
recognition, designates as fair value through profit or loss

> Those that the Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as available for sale

> Those for which the Bank may not recover substantially all of its initial investment through contractual cash

flows, other than because of credit deterioration.

Loans and Advances mainly represent loans and advances to customers, Banking and Financial Institutions. After
initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using a rate that closely
approximates effective interest rate, less allowance for impairment. Within this category, loans and advances to the
customers have been recognized at amortized cost using the method that very closely approximates effective interest
rate method. The amortization is included in 'Interest Income' in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in 'Impairment charge / reversal for loans and other losses' in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

Financial Assets Available for Sale

Available for sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments classified as 'Available for Sale' are
those which are neither classified as 'Held for Trading' nor 'Designated at fair value through profit or loss'. Debt securities in
this category are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized
gains and losses are recognized directly in equity through 'Other comprehensive income / expense' in the 'Available
for sale reserve'. When the investment is disposed of the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity
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is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under 'Other operating income'. Where Bank holds more than one
investment in the same security, they are deemed to be disposed of on weighted average basis. Interest earned whilst
holding 'Available for sale financial investments' is reported as 'Interest income' using the effective interest rate.
Dividend earned whilst holding 'Available for sale financial investments' are recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss as 'other operating income' when the right to receive the payment has been established. The losses arising from
impairment of such investments are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under 'Impairment charge for loans
and other losses' and removed from the 'Available for sale reserve'.

Financial assets under AFS that are monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency — translation differences
related to changes in the amortized cost of the security are recognized in income statement and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

In the normal course of business, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is the transaction price
(that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). In certain circumstances, however, the fair value will be
based on other observable current market transactions in the same instrument, without modification or repackaging, or
on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, such as interest rate yield, option
volatilities and currency rates. When such evidence exists, the Bank recognizes a trading gain or loss on inception of
the financial instrument, being the difference between the transaction price and fair value.

When unobservable market data have a significant impact on the valuation of financial instruments, the entire initial
difference in fair value from the transaction price as indicated by the valuation model is not recognized immediately in
the income statement. Instead, it is recognized over the life of the transaction on an appropriate basis, when the inputs
become observable, the transaction matures or is closed out, or when the Bank enters into an offsetting transaction.

Financial Liabilities

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liabilities

At the inception, Bank determines the classification of its financial liabilities. Accordingly financial liabilities are
classified as:

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

i.  Financial liabilities held for trading

ii. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
b. Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized in
profit or loss.

(i)  Financial Liabilities Held for Trading

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit
or position taking. This category includes derivative financial instrument entered into by Bank that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39
(Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement).

(ii)  Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Bank designates financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at following circumstances:

> Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities.

> The liabilities are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy
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> The liability contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows that would
otherwise have been required under the contract.

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Financial instruments issued by Bank that are not classified as fair value through profit or loss are classified as
financial liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in Bank having an
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to another Bank, or to exchange financial assets or financial
liabilities with another Bank under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Bank or settling the obligation by
delivering variable number of Bank's own equity instruments.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method. Amortization is included in 'Interest Expenses' in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Gains and
losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

Reclassification
(i)  Reclassification of Financial Instruments 'At fair value through profit or loss’,

Bank does not reclassify derivative financial instruments out of the fair value through profit or loss category
when it is held or issued.

Non-derivative financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition is
not reclassified subsequently out of fair value through profit or loss category.

Bank may, in rare circumstances reclassify financial instruments out of fair value through profit or loss
category if such instruments are no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term
notwithstanding that such financial instruments may have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets classified as fair value through profit or loss at the initial
recognition which would have also met the definition of 'Loans and Receivables' as at that date is reclassified
out of the fair value through profit or loss category only if Bank has the intention and ability to hold such asset
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

The fair value of financial instruments at the date of reclassification is treated as the new cost or amortized
cost of the financial instrument after reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognized in respect of the
reclassified financial instrument until the date of reclassification is not reversed to the Statement of Profit or
Loss.

If a financial asset is reclassified, and if Bank subsequently increases its estimates of the future cash receipts
as a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognized as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate from the date of the change in estimate rather than an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset at the date of change in estimate.

(ii)  Reclassification of 'Available for sale' Financial Instruments

Bank may reclassify financial assets out of available for sale category as a result of change in intention or
ability or in rare circumstances that a reliable measure of fair value is no longer available.

A financial asset classified as available for sale that would have met the definition of loans and receivables
at the initial recognition may be reclassified out of available for sale category to the loans and receivables
category if Bank has the intention and ability to hold such asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

The fair value of financial instruments at the date of reclassification is treated as the new cost or amortized cost
of the financial instrument after reclassification. Difference between the new amortized cost and the maturity
value is amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. Any gain or loss already
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income in respect of the reclassified financial instrument is accounted as
follows:

1. Financial assets with fixed maturity :

Gain or loss recognized up to the date of reclassification is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the
investment using the effective interest rate. If the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss
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that has been recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
2. Financial assets without fixed maturity :

Gain or loss recognized up to the date of reclassification is recognized in profit or loss only when the financial asset is sold
or otherwise disposed of. If the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized
in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

If a financial asset is reclassified, and if Bank subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result
of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognized as an adjustment to the
effective interest rate from the date of the change in estimate rather than an adjustment to the carrying amount of the
asset at the date of change in estimate.

(iii) Reclassification of 'Held to Maturity' Financial Instruments

As a result of a change in intention or ability, if it is no longer appropriate to classify an investment as
amortized at cost, Bank may reclassify such financial assets as at fair value through OCI and re- measured at
fair value. Any difference between the carrying value of the financial asset before reclassification and fair value
is recognized in equity through other comprehensive income.

However, if Bank were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held to maturity investments
before maturity [other than in certain specific circumstances permitted in Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS
39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement)], the entire category would be tainted and would
have to be reclassified as 'Investment measured at fair value through OCI'. Furthermore, Bank would be
prohibited from classifying any financial assets as 'Held to Maturity' during the following two years. These
reclassifications are at the election of management and determined on an instrument by instrument basis.

c. De-recognition
De-recognition of Financial Assets

Bank derecognizes a financial asset (or where applicable a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) when:

> The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
> Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
> Bank has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party

under a 'pass-through' arrangement and either Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset or it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount
allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

When Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, Bank
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that Bank has retained.

When Bank's continuing involvement that takes the form of guaranteeing the transferred asset, the extent of the
continuing involvement is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration received by Bank that Bank could be required to repay.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.
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De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized
in profit or loss.

Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase at a specified future date are not de-recognized from the Statement of
Financial Position as the Bank retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. The corresponding cash
received is recognized in the Statement of Financial Position as a liability with a corresponding obligation to return it,
including accrued interest under 'Securities sold under repurchase agreements', reflecting the transaction's economic
substance to the Bank. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as interest expense and is
accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate. When the bank has the right to sell or re-pledge
the securities, the Bank reclassifies those securities in its Statement of Financial Position as 'Financial assets held for
trading pledged as collateral or 'Financial assets available for sale pledged as collateral, as appropriate.

Conversely, securities purchased under agreements to resell at future date are not recognized in the Statement of
Financial Position. The consideration paid, including accrued interest, is recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position, under “Reverse repurchase agreements' reflecting the transaction's economic substance to the Bank. The
difference between the purchase and resale prices is recorded as 'Interest income' and is accrued over the life of the
agreement using the effective interest rate. If securities purchased under agreement to resell are subsequently sold
to third parties, the obligation to return the securities is recorded as a short sale within 'Financial liabilities held for
trading' and measured at fair value with any gains or losses included in 'Net trading income'.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position
when and only when Bank has a legal right to set off the recognized amounts and it intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis
only when permitted under NFRSs or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transaction such as in trading
activity.

Amortized Cost Measurement

The Amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at
initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for
impairment.

Fair Value Measurement

'Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability or
. In the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 - Valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices
for identical instruments in active markets.
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. Level 2 - Valuation technique using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for
similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets
and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

. Level 3 — Valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: financial instruments valued
using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobservable.
Level 1

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that
instrument or dealer price quotations (assets and long positions are measured at a bid price, liabilities and short
positions are measured at an asking price), without any deduction for transaction costs.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

Level 2

If a market for a financial instrument is not active, then the Bank establishes fair value using a valuation technique.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm's length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if
available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as
little as possible on estimates specific to the Group, incorporates all factors that market participants would consider
in setting a price, and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Inputs
to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent
in the financial instrument. The Bank calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for validity using prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on other available observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received, unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison
with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument, i.e. without modification or repackaging,
or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets. When transaction
price provides the best evidence of fair value at initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially measured at
the transaction price and any difference between this price and the value initially obtained from a valuation model is
subsequently recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when
the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

Level 3

Certain financial instruments are recorded at fair value using valuation techniques in which current market transactions
or observable market data are not available. Their fair value is determined using a valuation model that has been tested
against prices or inputs to actual market transactions and using the Bank's best estimate of the most appropriate model
assumptions. Models are adjusted to reflect the spread for bid and ask prices to reflect costs to close out positions,
credit and debit valuation adjustments, liquidity spread and limitations in the models. Also, profit or loss calculated
when such financial instruments are first recorded (day 1 profit or loss) is deferred and recognized only when the
inputs become observable or on de- recognition of the instrument.

Fair values reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the
Bank entity and the counterparty where appropriate. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any
other factors, such as liquidity risk or model uncertainties; to the extent that the Group believes a third-party market
participant would take them into account in pricing a transaction.

The fair value of a demand deposit is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on
which the amount could be required to be paid.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Bank recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.
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Impairment

At each reporting date, Bank assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets
is deemed to be impaired if and only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events,
that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an 'incurred loss event') and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Objective evidence of impairment may include: indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing
significant financial difficulty; the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments; and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Impairment of Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, such as amounts due from banks, held to maturity investments etc., Bank
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. In the event Bank determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, financial assets in a group
with similar credit risk characteristics are collectively assesses for impairment. However, assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the assets' carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in the income statement. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current rate closely
approximates effective interest rate. If the Bank has reclassified trading assets to loans and advances, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the new closely approximates effective interest rate determined at the
reclassification date. The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of collateralized financial
assets reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable.

Individually Assessed Financial Assets

The criteria used to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment include and not limited to:
Known Cash Flow difficulties experienced by the borrowers:

Past due contractual payments of either principal or interest;

Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

The probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; and

YV YVVYVYY

A significant downgrading in credit rating by an external credit rating agency.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured by discounting the expected future cash flows of a financial asset at its original
effective interest rate and comparing the resultant present value with the financial asset's current carrying amount.
The impairment allowances on individually significant accounts are reviewed more regularly when circumstances
require. This normally encompasses re-assessment of the enforceability of any collateral held and the timing and
amount of actual and anticipated receipts. Individually assessed impairment allowances are only released when there
is reasonable and objective evidence of reduction in the established loss estimate. Interest on impaired assets continues
to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount.
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Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the impairment charges for loans and other losses.

When impairment losses are determined for those financial assets where objective evidence of impairment exists, the
following common factors are considered:

Bank's aggregate exposure to the customer;

The viability of the customer's business model and their capacity to trade successfully out of financial difficulties
and generate sufficient cash flows to service debt obligations;

The amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;

The extent of other creditors 'commitments ranking ahead of, or pari-pasu with the Bank and the likelihood of
other creditors continuing to support the company;

Y VV VY

The realizable value of security and likelihood of successful repossession;

Collectively Assessed Financial Assets
Impairment is assessed on a collective basis in two circumstances:

> To cover losses which have been incurred but have not yet been identified on loans subject to individual
assessment; and

> For homogeneous groups of loans that is not considered individually significant.
Incurred but not yet identified impairment

Individually assessed financial assets for which no evidence of loss has been specifically identified on an individual
basis are grouped together according to their credit risk characteristics for the purpose of calculating an estimated
collective loss. This reflects impairment losses that the bank has incurred as a result of events occurring before the
reporting date, which the Bank is not able to identify on an individual loan basis and that can be reliably estimated.

These losses will only be individually identified in the future. As soon as information becomes available which
identifies losses on individual financial assets within the group, those financial assets are removed from the group and
assessed on an individual basis for impairment.

The collective impairment allowance is determined after taking into account:
> Historical Loss Experience in portfolios of similar credit risk; and

> Management's experienced judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the
actual level of inherent losses at the reporting date is like to be greater or less than that suggested by historical
experience.

Homogeneous groups of Financials Assets

Statistical methods are used to determine impairment losses on a collective basis for homogenous groups of financial
assets. Losses in these groups of financial assets are recorded on an individual basis when individual financial assets
are written off, at which point they are removed from the group.

Bank uses the following method to calculate historical loss experience on collective basis:

After grouping of loans on the basis of homogeneous risks, the Bank uses net flow rate method. Under this methodology
the movement in the outstanding balance of customers into default categories over the periods is used to estimate the
amount of financial assets that will eventually be irrecoverable, as a result of the events occurring before the reporting
date which the Bank is not able to identify on an individual loan basis.

Under this methodology, loans are grouped into ranges according to the number of days in arrears and statistical analysis
is used to estimate the likelihood that loans in each range will progress through the various stages of delinquency and
ultimately prove irrecoverable.
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Current economic conditions and portfolio risk factors are also evaluated when calculating the appropriate level of
allowance required covering inherent loss. These additional macro and portfolio risk factors may include:

Recent loan portfolio growth and product mix
Unemployment rates

Gross Domestic Production (GDP)Growth
Inflation

Interest rates

Changes in government laws and regulations

Property prices

YVVVVYVYVY

Payment status
But, the amount of provision to be created against Loans and Advances shall be higher of the following two amounts:
i) Impairment calculated as per Impairment Assessment Methodology as described above or,

i) Loan Loss Provision calculated as per the provisions of Unified Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.
Reversal of Impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the excess is written back by reducing the financial asset
impairment allowance account accordingly. The write-back is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Write-off of Financial Assets measured at Amortized Cost

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off either partially or in full,
when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where financial assets are secured, this is generally after receipt of any
proceeds from the realization of security.

Impairment of Rescheduled Loans and Advances

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve
extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated,
any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and the loan is no
longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and
that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual impairment assessment,
calculated using the loan's original effective interest rate (EIR).

Collateral Valuation

The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes in
various forms such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-
financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements. The fair value of collateral is generally assessed,
at a minimum, at inception and based on the guidelines issued by the central bank (Nepal Rastra Bank). Non-financial
collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties such as independent valuator and
audited financial statements.

Collateral Repossessed or Where Properties have Devolved to the Bank

Legally Repossessed Collateral represents Non-Financial Assets acquired by the Bank in settlement of the overdue
loans. The assets are initially recognized at fair value when acquired. The Bank's policy is to determine whether a
repossessed asset is best used for its internal operations or should be sold. The proceeds are used to reduce or repay
the outstanding claim. The immovable property acquired by foreclosure of collateral from defaulting customers, or
which has devolved on the Bank as part settlement of debt, has not been occupied for business use.

These assets are shown as Legally Repossessed Collateral under “Investment Property."
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Impairment of Financial Assets — Available for Sale

For financial investments measured at fair value through OCI, Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that an investment is impaired.

In the case of debt instruments, Bank assesses individually whether there is objective evidence of impairment based
on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognized in the Income Statement. Future interest income is based on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase
can be objectively related to a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the impairment loss is
reversed through the Income Statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as fair value through OCI, objective evidence would also include a
'significant' or 'prolonged' decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss is removed from equity and recognized
in the Statement of profit or loss. However, any subsequent increase in the fair value of an impaired available for sale
equity security is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Bank writes-off certain financial investments measured at fair value through OCI when they are determined to be
uncollectible.

Trading Assets

Financial assets such as government securities, equity etc. held for short term with an intention to trade have been
classified as trading assets. Trading assets are measured at fair value with any changes in fair value being recognized
in Profit or Loss.

Derivative assets and derivative liabilities

Derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts are valued using a valuation technique
with market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation technique is forward pricing model which
incorporates various inputs including foreign exchange spot and forward premiums.

Forward contracts are the contracts to purchase or sell a specific quantity of a financial instrument, a commodity, or
a foreign currency at a specified price determined at the outset, with delivery or settlement at a specified future date.
Settlement is at maturity by actual delivery of the item specified in the contract, or by a net cash settlement.

All freestanding contracts that are considered derivatives for accounting purposes are carried at fair value on the
statement of financial position regardless of whether they are held for trading or non-trading purposes. Changes in fair
value on derivatives held for trading are included in net gains/ (losses) from financial instruments in fair value through
profit or loss on financial assets/ liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Property and Equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of services, for rental
to others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one period. The Bank applies
the requirements of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these
assets. Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably measured.
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Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequently to
add to, replace part of an item of property, plant & equipment. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost
of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its
intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of computer
equipment. When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Cost Model

Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when that cost is
incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.

Revaluation Model

The Bank has not applied the revaluation model to the any class of freehold land and buildings or other assets. Such
properties are carried at a previously recognized GAAP Amount.

On revaluation of an asset, any increase in the carrying amount is recognized in 'Other comprehensive income' and
accumulated in equity, under capital reserve or used to reverse a previous revaluation decrease relating to the same
asset, which was charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss. In this circumstance, the increase is recognized as
income to the extent of previous write down. Any decrease in the carrying amount is recognized as an expense in the
Statement of Profit or Loss or debited to the Other Comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing
in the capital reserve in respect of that asset.

The decrease recognized in other comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under capital
reserves. Any balance remaining in the revaluation reserve in respect of an asset is transferred directly to retained
earnings on retirement or disposal of the asset.

Subsequent Cost

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow
to the Bank and it can be reliably measured. The cost of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized. When replacement costs
are recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the remaining carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized. Major inspection costs are capitalized. At each such capitalization, the remaining
carrying amount of the previous cost of inspections is derecognized. The gain or losses arising from de-recognition of
an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.
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Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated by using the straight line method on cost or carrying value of property, plant & equipment
other than freehold land.

The depreciable amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is allocated on systematic basis over its useful
life and is depreciated as follows:

Rate of Depreciation per annum (%)

Asset Category For the year ended 16 | For the year ended 15 July 2017
July 2018
Buildings 5% 5%
Vehicles 20% 20%
Office Equipment 25% 25%
Furniture & Fixtures (Metal & Wooden) 25% 25%
Computer Hardware 25% 25%
Battery 3 Years 3 Years
Leasehold Properties 10 Years 5 Years

Depreciation on newly acquired property and equipments are charged from the next month of booking. Depreciation
of property and equipment ceases when it is de-recognized at the time of its disposal.

Changes in Estimates

The asset's residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
financial year end.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery and
system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when
it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets

Recognition

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes. An intangible asset is recognized
if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an
intangible item that was initially recognized as an expense by the Bank in previous annual Financial Statements or
interim Financial Statements are not recognized as part of the cost of an intangible asset at a later date.

Computer Software

Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by the Bank, which are not
integrally related to associated hardware, which can be clearly identified, reliably measured, and it's probable that they
will lead to future economic benefits, are included in the Statement of Financial Position under the category 'Intangible
assets' and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset to
generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance and this expenditure can
be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
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Amortization of Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight-line basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss from the date
when the asset is available for use, over the best of its useful economic life based on a pattern in which the asset's economic
benefits are consumed by the bank. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual values are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted if appropriate. The Bank assumes that there is no residual value for its intangible assets.

Asset Category For the year ended 16 July 2018 For the year ended 15 July 2017
Computer Software 5 years 5 years

De-recognition of Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising on de recognition of an item of intangible assets is included in the
Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

Investment Property

Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held (by the owner or by the lessee
under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

Measurement

Investment property is accounted for under Fair Value in the Financial Statements. Accordingly, after recognition as
an asset, the property is carried at its cost, less impairment losses. If any property is reclassified to investment property
due to changes in its use, fair value of such property at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting.

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use since no future
economic benefits are expected. Transfers are made to and from investment property only when there is a change in
use. When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as Property, Plant and Equipment, its fair value at
the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

Income Tax

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount included in
determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is
recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity
or other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. The
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to tax authorities.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences except:

> Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.
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> In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits
and unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that the taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized except:

> Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

> In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in Subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference will be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate to income taxes imposed by
the same taxation authority.

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are the Bank's sources of funding. Deposits include non-
interest bearing deposits, saving deposits, term deposits, call deposits and margin deposits. The estimated fair value
of deposits with no stated maturity period is the amount repayable on demand. The fair value of fixed interest bearing
deposits is considered as the interest receivable on these deposits plus carrying amount of these deposits. The fair
value of debt securities issued is also considered as the carrying amount of these debt securities issued. Sub-ordinate
liabilities are liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt securities issued and
other creditors.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is determined
based on the present value of those cash flows. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations
under the contract. The provision is measured as the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

Before a provision is established, the Bank recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or Loss net off any reimbursement.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.
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Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as measured at fair
value through OCI and financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest income or expense
is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability.

The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options)
and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of
the EIR, but not future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the
bank revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original
EIR and the change in carrying amount is recorded as 'Interest income' for financial assets and 'Interest and similar
expense' for financial liabilities. However, for a reclassified financial asset for which the bank subsequently increases
its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect of that
increase is recognized as an adjustment to the EIR from the date of the change in estimate.

Fee and Commission Income

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over the period, which include service fees
and commission income.

Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized
interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as wells as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and
liabilities.

Net income from other financial instrument measured at fair value through Profit or Loss

Trading assets such as equity shares and mutual fund are recognized at fair value through profit or loss. No other
financial instruments are designated at fair value through profit or loss. The bank has no income under the heading net
income from other financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss.

3.14. Interest expense

For all financial liabilities measured at amortized cost, interest expense is recognised using the EIR. EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liabilities or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.

3.15. Employee Benefits

Employee benefits include:

. Short-term employee benefits such as the following, if expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related services:
L. Wages, salaries and social security contributions;
il. Paid annual leave and paid sick leave;
iii. Profit sharing and bonuses, and
iv. Non-monetary benefits (such as medical care, housing, cars and free or subsidized goods or services)

for current employees;

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit sharing
plans if the Bank has present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
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the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

. Post-employment benefits, such as the following:

i. Retirement benefits ( E.g.: pensions, lump sum payments on retirement); and

il. Other post-employment benefits such as post-employment life insurance and post-employment medical care;
o Other long term employee benefits and
o Termination benefits

Post employments benefits
Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Bank makes fixed contribution into a
separate Bank account (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions even if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and
prior periods as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the services rendered to Bank
by the employees and is recorded as an expense under 'Personnel Expense' as and when they become due. Unpaid
contributions are recorded as a liability under 'Other Liabilities' in Notes 4.23.

Bank contributed 10% of the salary of each employee to the Employees' Provident Fund. The above expenses are
identified as contributions to 'Defined Contribution Plans' as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19
(Employee Benefits).

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Accordingly, staff
gratuity and leave encashment has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS
19 (Employee Benefits).

. Gratuity
An actuarial valuation is carried out every year to ascertain the full liability under gratuity.

Bank's obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned for their service in the current and prior periods and discounting that benefit
to determine its present value, then deducting the fair value of any plan assets to determine the net amount
to be shown in the Statement of Financial Position. The value of a defined benefit asset is restricted to the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction on the future
contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to
any minimum funding requirement that apply to any plan in Bank. An economic benefit is available to Bank if
it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

Bank determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period. The discount rate is the average
yield on government bonds issued during the period having maturity dates approximating to the terms of
Bank's obligations.

The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services provided by employees during the year ended
16" July, 2018 (current service cost) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under 'Personnel
Expenses' together with the net interest expense. Bank recognizes the total actuarial gain/(loss) that arises in
computing Bank's obligation in respect of gratuity in other comprehensive income during the period in which
it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (58 years), early withdrawal from
service and retirement on medical grounds.
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Other long term employee benefits

Other long term employee benefits are all employee benefits other than short term employee benefits, post employment
benefits and terminal benefits. Accordingly, leave encashment plan of the Bank has been considered as other long
term employee benefits as per Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

° Unutilized Accumulated Leave

Bank's liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized beyond one year from the end
of the reporting period is treated as other long term employee benefits. Bank's net obligation towards unutilized
accumulated leave is calculated by discounting the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods to determine the present value of such benefits. The
discount rate is the average yield on government bonds issued during the period having maturity of five years
or more. The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit method. Net change in liability for
unutilized accumulated leave including any actuarial gain and loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit or
Loss under 'Personnel Expenses' in the period in which they arise.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Finance Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease. When Bank is the lessor under finance lease, the
amounts due under the leases, after deduction of unearned interest income, are included in, 'Loans& receivables from
other customers', as appropriate. Interest income receivable is recognized in Net interest income' over the periods of
the leases so as to give a constant rate of return on the net investment in the leases.

When Bank is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized and included in 'Property, Plant and
Equipment' and the corresponding liability to the lessor is included in 'Other liabilities'. A finance lease and its
corresponding liability are recognized initially at the fair value of the asset or if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Finance charges payable are recognized in 'Interest expenses' over the period of the lease
based on the interest rate implicit in the lease so as to give a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Operating Lease

All other leases are classified as operating leases. When acting as lessor, Bank includes the assets subject to operating
leases in 'Property, plant and equipment' and accounts for them accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized to the
extent that residual values are not fully recoverable and the carrying value of the assets is thereby impaired.

When Bank is the lessee, leased assets are not recognized on the Statement of Financial Position. Rentals payable
and receivable under operating leases are accounted for on a straight-line basis over the periods of the leases and are
included in 'Other operating expenses' and 'Other operating income', respectively.

The bank recognized accrued lease for the period as an expense on incremental basis (as per lease term) considering
the general inflation as per Carve-out (optional) pronounced on 20th September 2018.

Foreign currency translation

All foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, which is Nepalese Rupees, using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates when the transactions were affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to Nepalese
Rupees using the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date and all differences arising on non-trading activities are
taken to 'Other Operating Income' in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary
items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
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Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items in foreign currency measured at fair
value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates different from those
which were initially recorded are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, foreign currency differences
arising on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial guarantee and loan commitments

Contingent Liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or
present obligations where the transfer of economic benefits is not probable or cannot be reliably measured as defined
in the Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets).

To meet the financial needs of customers, the Bank enters into various irrevocable commitments and contingent
liabilities. These consist of financial guarantees, letter of credit and other undrawn commitments to lend. Letters
of credit, guarantees and acceptances commit the Bank to make payments on behalf of customers in the event of a
specific act, generally related to the import or export of goods. They carry a similar credit risk to loans. Operating
lease commitments of the Bank (as a lessor and as a lessee) and pending legal claims against the Bank to form part
of commitments of the Bank. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Statement of Financial Position but are
disclosed unless they are remote. But these contingent liabilities do contain credit risk and are therefore form part of
the overall risk of the Bank.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the Statement of Financial Position (within 'other liabilities') at fair
value, being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank's liability under each guarantee is
measured at the higher of the amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss, and the best estimate of expenditure required to settle any financial obligation arising as a result of
the guarantee.

Any increase in the liability relating to the financial guarantees is recorded in the Statement of Profit or Loss under
'Impairment Charges for Loans & other losses'. The premium received is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss
under 'Net fees and commission income' on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Share capital and reserves

Share capital and reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are claims on the residual interest in the
assets of the entity after deducting all its liabilities. Changes in equity during the reporting period comprise income
and expenses recognized in the statement of financial performance; plus contributions from holders of equity claims,
minus distributions to holders of equity claims.

Earnings per share including diluted

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the
ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, if any.

Earnings per share is calculated and presented in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a component of an entity:

. that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and
expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity),

. whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and

. for which discrete financial information is available.
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Not every part of an entity is necessarily an operating segment or part of an operating segment. For example, a
corporate headquarters or some functional departments may not earn revenues or may earn revenues that are only
incidental to the activities of the entity and would not be operating segments. For the purposes of this NFRS, an
entity's post-employment benefit plans are not operating segments.

The bank has identified the key segments of business on the basis of nature of operations that assists the Executive
Committee of the bank in decision making process and to allocate the resources. It will help the management to assess
the performance of the business segments. The business segments identified are Banking (including loan, deposit and
trade operations), Payment solutions (Cards), Remittance, Treasury and Micro Banking. All operations between the
segments are conducted on pre-determined transfer price. Treasury department acts as the fund manager of the Bank.

Employee Bonus

Employee bonus shall be calculated at the rate of 10% of Profit before bonus and tax.

Dividend on Ordinary Shares

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Bank's shareholders. Interim Dividend is deducted from equity when they are declared and no longer at the discretion
of the Bank. Dividend for the year that is approved after the reporting date is disclosed as an event after the reporting
date.

Cash Flow Statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared using 'The Direct Method', whereby gross cash receipts and gross cash
payments of operating activities, finance activities and investing activities have been recognized.

Comparative Figures

The comparative figures and phrases have been rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year's
presentation.

First Time Adoption of NFRS
As stated in Note 2.1, these are the Bank's first financial statements prepared in accordance with NFRS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended
16th July 2018, the comparative information presented for the year ended 15th July 2017and in the preparation of an
opening NFRS based Statement of Financial Position at 17th July 2016 (the date of transition).
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Cash and cash equivalent is measured in its carrying value. Balance with BFIs include balance maintained at various banks and financial institutions.
Other items in cash and cash equivalent includes interbank placements and other investments with maturity above 7 days and within 3 months, based on

original maturity
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Balance with Nepal Rastra Bank is measured in its carrying amount. Balance with NRB is principally maintained as a part of regulatory cash reserve
ratio required by NRB. Other deposit and receivables from NRB includes balance at NRB in foreign currency.
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The Forward Exchange Contracts are derivative products used by the bank for hedging purpose as a regular treasury activities. The gross derivative assets
and derivative liabilities are netted off and shown separately in the financial statements as derivative assets or liabilities as a part of risk management.
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Loan and advances provided to microfinance financial institution are presented under this head.
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TR AT ea=en (¥%,5%9,29%) (¥%,549,29%) (4R19,03% OR)
G TRA %0485, 49,599 RO4R%, 49,599 ¥3UL909R F9¥
@ AT HeAth TRUET FA AT AIE - -
ST %0, 4%%,49¢ 599 %O4R%, 49,599 ¥3UL809% 5%

Loans and advances are assessed individually and collectively as per incured loss model which is compared with the loss provision prescribed
by NRB directive no. 2. Higher of the loss as per incurred loss model and NRB directive is considered for impairment. Accrued Interest
Receivable on loans have been considered under Loans and Advances measured at Amortized Cost. Loan to employees provided according
to the Employee Bylaws of the bank is presented under this head, which is also measured at amortized cost.

8.0.9 ®S1f UGR®! IMERAT 1l a2 JATucd! fdgauor

T EEd
foeom o9 a9 ol ] T as

FAl TER

rata® Fl 9\9,045,430,000 9'9,045,430,000 R,R¥0 4\R j93
afufasd s 9, ¥ 93 1KY, ¥3R 9, ¥9R,4%9,¥3R 93,393,593 b¥ 5
e i /fara & 3,943%90,000 3,943 %90,000 SYR,¥¥9 303
HET TE1 o =A< YT ot 99,34%,3%0,000 99,34%,3%0,000 %,2%0,845,594
REACEEIERIEE %,0%%,2190,000 %,0%%,290,000 4,489,55%,3%9
frer wee wt R,0%%,%90,000 3,03%,%90,000 R,IR934Y, ¥¥Y
wifsi wfveg &er 9,090,2%0,000 9,090,2%0,000 q,¥39, 03559
BR qET ol 3 %¥%3,950,000 3¥%3950,000 R,5¥% Y5y 409
faa= =T &t R9%, ¥ 33, Rk R94,¥33,9R% 9,059%9%,5'9%%
formr @ia 5,240,000 5,340,000 9,930,434
FHATE i ¥Y¥9,9%9,35% ¥49,934,35% 305,%45 490
il 599,09¢,05% 599,09¢,05R 9,%34,50%, 9%
ST £9,3%5,099,4]4 %9,3%5,099,4%4 WY 343,R%0,943
A TH ATHN AT 39R,55%,23% 39R,55%,3¥ R%5,549,5%4
FA ST %9, 19RR%,430 %9,9985%%,430 WY YR XY RYT
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il EEi
i g aw a9 o T qW
AT Fa 4%,3%9,3%R v¥o 4%,3%9,3%R,9¥0 ¥3,R9R,¥3Y,¥\90
a4 -
yafvET g R, YRR, ¥9%, 90 R,¥&E, ¥9%, %0 £50,)99995
Iz fgaq arsTe - - -
7T - - -
ElEE R - - -
AT ZAT - - _
I - - _
kil 59, 919%R%,430 £9,919%R%, 430 YWY TUR XY ¥
8.0.3 Rl IRI0ID! JMURAT Baif a=n JudiD) faevor
TR EED
feeor o9 Ty g aw T qu
TRET
I/ qAA FEIT 45,5309 %% 4%,%¥3,09R %% ¥9,349,49% 33¢
T AT =N 9¥,539,3%3 9%¥,539,3% %9,%94,05%
waeft &% qar faxirr Feamer s 3¢ 34,98 36 3R4,9R8 ¥49,999,95%
FIHE AT 949,95%,094 949,945,094 9%%,%3%,09%
FIRIET iR Shehl STHIAA - - -
ferafer amrstaae! fodt 15,%¥33¥3 ALERRE 99,%33,03%
i farer ferdt 335,%%9,30% 335,%89,30% ¥ ¥R 59
1<y ferdrasrent fordr g5 ]%0 %5, 250 -
FIIrER STHEI YRR, ¥R YRR, ¥RR -
SR FHTA R¥5,%%, ¥ R¥5,RE3, ¥4 %4,0%9905%
o ferat 3,394,955, ¥43 3,394,957, ¥4 9,29945R %54
kil 59, 919%R%,430 &9, 919%R%, 430 ¥¥ TUR XY &Y
FRET ATHT - - -
kil 59, 919%R%,430 89, 919%R%,430 ¥ TUR KR ¥
8.10.8 @oif SNRAA @Az (Allowances for Impairment)
qE EED
feeom T a9 ol T as
faetw Siifaw =gaen
T q B WG ¥35 453,94 ¥35 453,934 30%,5%%,0%5
T qUH SRGH aedT
7 AR ST 439,554, %0% 139,554, %0% 129,55% 4%
T Ay I&HT/ fRar - - -
ERECE] - - -
faaeft waTer fafrwa ) wYwd HRU FiEw Faedr - - -
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ER I CRE] - - -
TG AR A2 &R%,R%5,509 &R%,R%5,509 ¥R5 45394
Wi SifEw =Een

ST q B WG 419,03 9] 4]\9,03% 0] 390,RR8&%G
T FUH SRGH aed -

T Al AT/ fmar (10R,959,5%5) (10R959,5%5) L1999
faaeft Hra! fafee & Sifes g ue/9e - - -
BRI CRE] - - -
TG AR A2 ¥R¥,549,%9% ¥RY¥,5%9,R9R 1319,03% 0%
STHHT ST =t 9,9%9,9%0,'%93 9,939,9R0,%1% 9,0%4,%33,R9¥

ST ¥ 5

ferausta (Securities) cTomell
HTUTE HHTT R09Y
e EEd
feraor o9 au g aw T qu

qRUITT HAHT HeATg TR T 5,%%9,2%5,%90 5,%4%,2%5,%90 ¥ %9, 09¥ 353
FVTOCI 9T HeaT3+ TRUHT IR (Fate) AT Amr 94.0,20Y 350 940,%0Y,350 Y3840 93%
ST 5,G03,R03,5%0 5,G0R,R03,5%0 ¥,9%5 5R¥ ¥R

The total investment of the bank in the financial instruments is presented under this account head in two categories; investment securities measured at

amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

8.C.a uRUWIfEId (Amortized) FCIHT FeASHol AR UDI AU clomolt

TR EEg
B oq a9 o 9y T aw
HTTH - - -
TTFT AT qAT AT ¥,999,9¥0,R34 %,999,1¥0,33% 3,3¥4, ¥%3 Y05
FLHT T el 3¥53%%9,35% 3,¥535¥9 35¥ q,29% ¥ 3%
AT IO Sehebl HUTH TAT T - - _
AT RTT Sebehl AT IUHRIES - - 309,340,000
a7 418,395,009 418,398,009 4Y,A33,334
Harg: (a9 gl Jrermr e - - -
kil 5,849,2%5,590 5,%49,2%5,890 ¥ 5%, ¥3¥ 383

8.c.2 31o¥ A 310GToll AiMbd BRI eI HeRIIShal JRUdbI AR (sfdafe) ctomelt

HE EEd
feraor a9 Ty aq aw T qu
TheRdl STFET
g aREe 932,385,450 93%,3%5,450 ¥IR¥Z IR
TFerRd THUHT SARES 99,%0%,900 99,4.0%,900 99,40%,900
STET 940,204,350 940,204,350 43,940 93%
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8.0.3 sfdadion aRvd! comelid BRI

Presented below are information relating the the Group's investments in equities and mutual funds classified as FVTOCI investments.

o9 T ay o9 a9 T qw

T TIX T T RIX T T T T bl WA T

° > ;) >

feaon

e e TR

firet e fafiee RN §¥33,300 - T §,¥33,300 - -
%430 W R & 900 H Xl T - - - - - -
4,540 TR I ¥ 900 Pl Tl Fh - - - - i _
5\%0 MY YR & 900 F Tl el - - - - - -

fifere. et vt fofeee §,559,0%5 1,¥84,594 - -l 9esi0¥s §,¥54,59 - -
1,303 HERW 14X & 00 T &l 3[xhI - - - -
1,4%5 IR 7R ¥ 900 F FT FHl - - - -
Q44 AITH A & 400 FI A I - - - -

TTEH TR AR FEHT (A 483,39 3,0¥0400 - - 4B 3,0%0 {00 - -
3540 FERY 9 & 400 FH T TxHI - - - R
3,200 FERW X & 00 FI Tl AT - - - R
£40 FMH IR ¥ 400 FI T FHI - - , -

fagrd T e AR5 9,495,000 - -l RIRER 1,495,000 - -
3,300 YR I ¥ 400 Pl Tl FHl - - - -
2,000 HEARW A % Q00 Pl T T - - - -
300 FTH IR F 400 F T [chl - - - -

fafer TGN FHT fafies 9,539,944 9,450,000 q®¥9RER 9,099 300 9,539,944 4,450,000 90¥9,R%R 9,099 300
2,000 IR X ¥ 400 F & FH - - - -
1,4%0 R §AX ¥ 400 & & Fhl - - - -
590 MY R ¥ 900 FH & Ih - - - -

T TRl Ft fefvee 3,085 3 3,59¥,000 - -l 30te3sY 3,59%,000 - -
3,900 TR X & 400 FI Gl 7l - - - -

TR SFRA et fetfie g ¥ 439833 3,0%53,00 - A ¥uReRR 3,9%52,00 - -
¥,030 FIERW X % 400 FI &l ThT -
3430 FERW AW & Q00 FI Tl T - - - -
400 AITE §% & 400 %l Tel Ifxhl - - - -

Ao o fe 8 fafide 4,39%,054 ¥ %699%0 - - 4,39%,05% ¥ %999%0 - -
9530 FWGRW IR % 400 FI T FThT - - - _

v A g fafiee 554,203 ¥,430,000 - -l &5eqR03 ¥ 230,000 _ _
94,000 FHRW AR ¥ 100 P T FehT - - - -

frdf S §F ffeg W94 ISEARY - - 5,294 ISEAR{Y - -
Y50 JTERY IR T 400 P &Il Al - - - -

AT WA EigAT faef den fafee - 5,548 - 4,200 - 5,54% - 200

¥ YR IR % 400 F T TH - - - -
¥ A A % 400 Hl T TehH - - - -

fift g Swamre FFHT fafrde - 93| M,¥00 AL - 13 ,¥00 T¥3%%
{ FERT R T 400 F & T - - - ;
q ETE 8% & 400 B e Fxhl - - - -

AR aﬂﬁ?r faxir wen fafudg - q,R¥0 - EAER A - 9,¥0 - EAER
q FERY 7R % 400 F & Tl - - - -
{ @9 R F 100 F Tl TchH - - _ .

FAfEE e qan e e ot ¥ 245,800 vy 5 - - ¥R4s,800 LEEPRAH - -
¥8,45\9 TIER SR ¥ 400 1 el e - - - R

AT FCASAR FFA! (WS ¥3,353,559 ¥q,09%,054| 609006 |  FQ04IUO[ ¥3RmImEq|  ¥(,09¥%,054|  9090,08 %304, 340
45,554 FERW 9% F 400 FI Gl I[h -
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TEad TEX FH [
%8343 FERW 9 & 400 FI WA [zhI

90834

1,488,344

905345

4,488,944

vt A TrRATeE we (e
58, % FHE SR & 00 F & THI
§8,44R FRITTF 1R & 400 FH T Tehl
20,308 AMH IR ¥ 400 B Tl T

5,244,300

g %400

RR¥8q00

% ¥05,0%0

5,944,300

5,3%,00

R,R99900

%,¥085,020

AT AGH TR FAT AW
4,000 FHGRT A & 00 Pl Tl [h
¥,503 FERW X ¥ 400 FI &l h
939 T SR & 900 F A

4,509 R

4,340,000

3503574

858,65

4,098 R

4,340,000

3%03,5%%

858,65

St F qon fowm Fe fafes

9,39 ¥00

1¥ 3343

9,364 ¥00

1% 33343

a fram 3% fafie

9,99z 3%

4,995 35

A AR EEAF gwarare A fafid

949,840

949,840

AWatel Ffe foepr &% e

Q400

93%,000

3,400

93%,000

et Fufee faci gen fafes

¥ 400

% 309

¥ 400

%309

TR R R ffwdg

9,000

3430

4,000

3430

A AT wEA ferefr gen fafRe

¥ 400

R0, 3%¥

¥ 400

R0, 3%¥

RUCAK R GG

49200

143,398

4900

143,398

Gt @i gEgaR fafes

9,500

EERG

9,500

338

IR w fo f wafew focdi gen fafee

3,500

R¥,¥00

3,500

R¥,¥00

WATg FMIE AT WIEAR faeiny aen fefiee

?,%00

53,9¥%

?,%00

53,9¥%

FfeR AEAGHEE IHATE 4% fafee

¥R{ %0

4,030,050

¥34,%%0

4,030,050

%3 e feeia wean fafeg

¥0 %00

9,03¥% %3¢

¥0,%00

9,03¥% %3¢

Mutual Fund:

fowt ghradt wog
35,95 AHRW IR & 90 &1 &

s%,%R0

EEEIACT

384,50

384,50

359,%%0

399500

359,%%0

359,%%0

W f g wg
39, ¥ 34 TTERI IR ¥ 0 # T

Y30

ECERRS

RYWO

YO

YO

ECERREN

ALY

YO

w e fa & Wiy wog
¥3,533 THRY 7R & 40 & A

¥35,3%0

Y 3%e

¥35,3%0

¥35,3%0

¥35,330

YR

¥35,330

¥35,330

et vt wog
9,¥%,33% TR ¥R & 90 F WA

¥R R0

115¥ 4%

,¥%3,3%0

195¥ 4%

fagrd zfrdt wug
8 %8,0¥g FERY IR % 90 # TA

2,399 ¥50

NECART

,599 %50

MCARE

it gfeet wUg
¥ ¥%,500 JERW IR & 90 F WA

¥,4%5,000

¥,359,00g

¥ 4%5,000

¥,3%9,00g

fefewa Fem wog
4,00,000 FERT IR % 10 F WA

4,000,000

¥,%%0,000

4,000,000

¥ %¥0,000

T A & gt v wg
4,00,000 FHRW 1% & 40 FI T

4,000,000

¥ Y{RY,000

4,000,000

¥ 484,000

i AT T TR A

FAT G FE
R,38% FERY IR & 400 FT & A
13,300 ERW R & Q00 Bl Tl Ifh
34048 A A % 400 B T Ixhl

qraao,ooo

9,330,000

9,330,000

9,330,000

9,330,000

4,330,000

9,330,000

9,330,000

e freafve g ffide
3,959 AR IR ¥ 400 FI T T

3]% 800

3,8%, 600

3,29, 900

3,R%, 600

3R, 600

3,R1%, 600

335,900

3,R%, 600

AT TR e freew fefee
40,000 TRV AT F 400 F T T

4,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

12,000 FERY A % 400 F Tl Tchl

4,200,000

4,200,000

4,300,000

9,200,000

4,200,000

4,200,000

4,200,000

4,300,000

ST

8% 30%,4%9

140,204,350

AR

43,84033%

18¥,30%,4¥9

140,204,350

WARTER

43,94033%
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HaABl A, HABT AT

ATIAT 4.8
dlc] ®x AUl
ATHTE HAT R09Y
TR %
B oq a9 o 9y T aw

A FI T
AT AR AT HY THT 434,333, ¥ 9% 4RY,333,¥9Y 93,00
HfereedT aUETH FT THI - - -
T F ACUA -
AT AT AT T ¥q9,440,38Y ¥99,440,39% R ¥EYIRR
T FUEEHT FX IMIAEE - - -
STHT 993,953,900 993,953 900 ¥Y,R¥TUTY

Current tax assets of the bank includes advance tax paid by the bank and tax deducted at source (TDS) on behalf of the bank. In the same way the
current income tax liabilities include the tax payable to the Government computed as per the provisions of the income tax act 2058 under self assessment

tax return filed

FEAT ¥ 90
JABRID DUl ciollell
ATITE HHTT 0L
TR &
faaor
g aq g o T qw
i FETae FFIAEMAT A0 - _
e THUH TeTdqeH FFEIAET AT 200,000,000 -
STFAT T 200,000,000
AT ¢ S a - _
Tz At 7o 300,000,000 -
8.90.9 JRIGA HEDHT ASRID HFUGHHAT cToNel
e %
faazur
7| a9 T q T N
.................. fafas - - _
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA R gfa w
il
8.90.2 JRADHd cToTUDI AGRID HFUGHHAT Giololl
TR Eel
faaor
o9 a9 boic ] T as
AT e o, 300,000,000 - -
3,000,000 97X & 00 HT &
STHEAT ?OO’OOO’OOO - -
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8.90.3 IO JSRIG HFUEED! SMGADRI

Percentage of Ownership held by Bank

s a9 T ay
FHE FTed fo. q00% -
STHET 00, .
8.90.8 JAERIB BFUclis®! IR forafesia ared
faazur i o=
g o a9 a9 T ag
FAT Ffves fafiee
NCI T EH! Il Fete 340
TETE WA R0 AT NCI T TgeT &fera wieara
NCI AT FTRTAT T AT
forazor ...Ltd. ...Ltd. ..Ltd.
NCI &7 TEHl Ff@dl T (%)
TG FETRY R0WY W THE T TEHN [rerd HIwATd
NCI ATE STHAT T ATHIET
As the subidiary is wholly owned by the bank, hence non controlling interest does not exist as on the reporting date.
ST ¥.99
JAddg DUl clolloll
TS HAT( R09Y
foazur i o=
g o a9 a9 T ag
qfered T¥Ig FFEIAET AT $¥ SUE, RS 20,000,000 20,000,000
iR THUEH G¥ag FFIAHT AT - - -
ST SRTHT Y ¥ RUE, R0 20,000,000 20,000,000
TS - SEH Sawe - - -
gz fwardr g FRATEACL 20,000,000 20,000,000
8.99.9 JfAGd HUDI JddgG HFUGNAT c1oTloll
TR CEd
faawur a9 T a9 a9 T qg
q " & q qH & qa
TEAA ATZHBIRA (qa der fafaee
300,000 FEIF AT & 00 HI T FThT 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 | 30,000,000 20,000,000
¥0,993 FAE A ¥ 00 N &l =<hT - - - - -
ST 20,000,000 20,000,000 30,000,000 | 30,000,000 20,000,000
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o TR %
a9 au g au T qw
.................. fafaeg
.................. SR gfq &
................. fafras
.................. SR gfq &
ST
8.99.3 IO JAFIG HFUNETD STGIDRY
qHe EE]
feaawor =
g ad a9 Tu | T ay
Perece;llzli(giebng(z\;JI? ership Perecentage of Ownership held by Bank
TS ATSHIRIEATH faxra e fatads R0.00%, 20,009, R0.00%,
300,000 HIUE U ¥ 00 &I el T[xhl
8.99.8 Jodg BUcligTd sidadl e
EE]
& qHE
a9 au aq ag | T qw
Perece}r::liﬁebszOa\;lvl? ership Perecentage of Ownership held by Bank
AR A IRTAT i e fafwds R0.00% |
ATIAT .93
Jaufdar ctomolt
ATITE HATT 0%
g EE]
faawor =
g ad g o T ay
HUT AT HEUTHA TTRT AT ava i
ST § T HoaTd 9%0,953,4¥ 9%0,953,4¥ 950,4%0 %35
T Fve a9/ faer (R%,093,4%9) (R%,09%,4%9) (R0,349,03Y)
T TR HAT AAAT TRATT - - -
FHTATAAY T - - _
gg ThH 93¥ 99,003 93% 99,003 9%0,953,4R¥
U T TEUTeh MU Tl awafa
STF0T q T HsaTd - _
g quEr a9/ faer - -
T qUH HAX TeIH IRATT - -
FHTATSAY TITATRIT - _
gq A - _
ST 93¥ 99,003 93¥,9%,003 9%0,953,4R¥
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@ PpATS! dop ferfacs
<&'<® KUMARI BANK LIMITED

HaABl A, HABT AT

- bea'got'atx | o’¥a0r'02 broRby Re | owEmBerh | Rer'aWor | a3x'bR%0% | x2&%a%%b | KRbab'0% | Blesik Ik ¥eO: Babb Dkl
ora‘2ayort | - wexEhe'by 2bba%n o X O »20'0%%EE 22bbakt 2tr‘o229b | WRb2e%'0% | Blesik 1k R60: Ralbbk lklle
- - arxtax'th o30'2n2'0t | ar2'0¥e'ey | bob'rEot: 20223 ba'a%bt FERESR NS | Blbalh 14 £60: Ealbh Dlklie
- - - - - - - - - kb &b 2B
- %3t 'bix - atbix TN
3t b atbix TN
aEbi% - - - - - - o3k bk - TN
- [SERIRFRY 066 200 22) Ror'bzre | tear'eha'ab | ebyewdorb | Kiabte'erb | o3bAkeDb | - Blbalh | ReOx Balbh Dlklle
- - - - - - - - - [NATATYY
- (n20%30'ba) | (252%2%'bh) (ont'onos) | CRENOOE | posain) | renirb) | - - i)
- %% WRE RO 2%0%0%2b ha3B22'e 2brRaktr rere3ob 2%3%bo'2b RS 0% - BbhIg |bhb bk
- B Iplktlk 112 LRLE kel
02 % %0203 | 0% ¥ee' 203 | E2biakb'beb or22%%'0a | ar¥e20bs | E3darearh | are'beotrb | zorRe2BhL | - Blbalh |4 2602 Baibh Dlklle
abytosoxh |- 202 %22b% - beaterab |- - o% ‘230 'ab |- blolelhb
(zexon2%b) | - (2%b'00%'R) - (b22%%0%) | - eat'o2¥%b) |- - bl
- - - - - - - plbpll P12 Lbhe kk
LS ER - 22t%to0th 0%b'ba3’'a 22h%0%'2b | Saxtot™ teo'bor'n ary'sab - 1BekI2 1bkb ki
2bxen AR | - 3b% %0 b oto'brES3 arrb2%'2y | b2t Sbb %% 032 abb | Sb'bas’b - bloolht b te0x lablls b
Rlbblb 12 LB |2eR12
tEr'202300'h | 2bt'bok oy arkr3ER0b | 223 ertar | eotdor'oub | Lrkboy'oob | ¥er'aaaht | WAbEa%0% | BlRalh 1% %eO: Ealbh Dlkile
- - - - - - - AT SN INNTATYY
- (a%:'232'%2) | (@3b‘oraxb) (3RSD%b%) | (bhrR2%RE) | (92x'axas) | (re3Eib) - - %lb| lbhb ki
- - - - - - - wum_m mw
- Sb2"50% 23k 3023 9t ORb'ARY A 3052020 | 229l | aebbatht | - - ING
- - bk ke bk
205%3b% %S | 205%3b%%s | 202932%ax S T L T T T L
- - - - - - - BElohibh/ Bilklbk
(bre'asxox) | - (2%2'030'%) - (003 BR%EY) | (b5 k2R | - - lb| lbhe bh
- - - - - - - wum m“/
RObRRTE=E | 55 50 EOR R R sarbas | ebarronn | PO0CROETEcaiapion | amorvor | oxwaer bk
- - - ‘hk kb bk
*rotas'oby | - 70’ bE0 kS 050%ans | a2%taheh | KbbeakeRb | ezanobabh | bao'aba'a | eiEeR A2 Blesli L& 2002 lnblks b
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parH e forfads

<&"<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
Bl AP, HABT AT

ATIAT ¥.9%
rfa I 3ted Jeufa
ATUTG HATT R0y
fereror Ll EEAAY G FETd G HETd
afE ferrmer R0y FT FTFAT R09¥ T FTFAT

A "
q T BT HaTd ¥Y,\E, ¥ Y S - - ¥y, RNE S
I 99 99 - - -

99 R%,990 4 3% - - R%,990 4 3%
Tg qud fatm - - - -
A / I TS - - - -
HTHE FEAT 09¥ FT Fea - 9,555,243 - %,55%,2%3 %,55%,3%3
Ig 99 99 - - -

a7 108,523,043 - q0%,5%3,04% -
Tg qud fatm - _ -
A / I HATSH - - -
AWG TEA 00y F HwTw - | 995,950,0%% - 995,950,0%% -
FEHE T I A
9 ST 063 B HreaTd - WA, ¥R - - LER TR AT
7 AU FTABE - 9,29% 95% - - q,29% 95%
TG FIRT BT AT - - - _ _
ot _ _ _ _ _
AT o I AR - - 92,355 %¥3
NG AATA 09% HT Ao - S ¥55.393 - LY, ¥55,393 LY %55, 393
T qURT ZTARE - - - - _
T qUHT gl - 35Y45,3¥Y¥ - 3,545,3%Y -
e _ _ _ _ _
FHRSA - - - - -
TG HETA 094 F HeE™ - £5,335,%9Y¢ - 5,335,599 -
s frmior - - - _ _
T TH W - - - _ _
W@ AT 2093 FI HisT
YW@ HAT R0\9¥ T HiEeW - 9 ¥q5,939 - - 8 %95, 939
TG HEAT 06y T HIwTTd -] 990,%43¥3% - 990,%43,¥3% -
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oaTH e forfaids

<&'<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
HaABl A, HABT AT

ferareor qRETT HTNTE T TG T
gfe R0WY FI FFAT | R09¥ T FTFT

A "
q =TI B HrSaTd ¥Y g YT - ¥Y,\RNE, ¥ E
Ig 99 99 - -

a7 35,990 4 3% - 35,990 4 3%
Tg quH fatm - - -
A / I TS - - -
TG FEA 09% Hi Hisdd %,55%,2%3 H,55%,2%3 ,55%,3%3
Ig 99 99 - -

g 405,523,043 05,523,043 -
Tq quw fatm - -
R 1 e s G - -
TG FEWA 00y F AT q5.020.0¥% 995,950,0%%
FEFET T g At
q HTET R0\93 FHT HSaTd ¥RUIY, ¥EY - WU, EY
T TUH ETIHE 9,29% %% - q,29% %%
Tg FIRT BT AT - - -
fi - -
TS - 9%,2%5,%¥R
YW@ HAT 09¥ T A S ¥55.393 2¥,%55,393 £%,¥%5,393
T YD FTHFE - - -
TG FURT ETATHRAT 35Y45,3¥Y 3595,3%% -
i _ - _
FHTASH - - -
YOG HATR 09y HI AT £5,3R%,59¢ £5,33%,54¢
i frwior - - -
T T VI - - -
W@ AT 2093 F Hiva| 39%0,2%3
W@ HATT R09¥ @I A 9 ¥q5,939 - 8 %95, 939
WG FEE 00y F AW 990,%43,¥3%, 990,%43 ¥3%,
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parH e forfads

<&"<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
Bl AP, HABT AT

R qAqT ITHT

iR =T AT AT
fasr arfaes

e

IR KR

%,%00,5%¥.30
33,597, 454.20

AT ¥.9%
2qdIel th
TG TATT R0\8Y,
EEd
sl ERW T gt W #T e TG R *om
T TR FY qEA/ ()

JEATE AT R FT
ep qaT faeirar Feamerg fauer &=l qar e - - -
UEHATS [GTHT oIl qAqT TS - 53,35, 4\ 5% (53,395,499.5%)
ERUG TR - -
fardTo= =T (securities) AT 3,2%0,395.3% - 3,2%0,395.3%
TEfd qar STHI 9,495, 195,05 - 9,495, 495,05
gieiira FH=eT @ AT L9,R%% %55, - 9Y,%%%,¥%5.%9
ferer arfaea - - -
e - - -
ERERIEIRC IR - - -
SEaTE AT € T %9,453,¥3%.0% 53,395 LN, 55 (30,944, ¥%.53)
M FREFT ATINT F2 ATETAT TR F - - -
YT AT IR e TUl WA 7 - - _
TG AETEHT @E &R &Y aetd/ (TTed) (0,94¥ 9¥%.%3)
9 HTEU R08¥ TEE F (FWH) /T (2%,90%,19%.23)
7| ay fastn wow (feat o) (94,349, ¥3%.30)
ATRT A T TEEUER @R F @/ (IR 99,1 ¥%,R95.59
I faeaa ARSI 3EEUHT T FY @/ (TREHT) 3,50Y,309.5%
g fad TEEuR T E FT @/ (wEE) 0.00
FEaTg faeamT T Y
e qaT faeirar Fearerg fauer &= qar A - - -
UEHATS [GTHT ol qAqT TS - 53,395, 4\%9.5% (53,395, 4 %N.&%)
T IHrg - ¥5,04Y,095.30 (¥5,04¥,095.30)
frdTT= =T (securities) AT - ¥, % ¥%,3509.3Y (X,%¥%,359.34)

%,200,5%%.39
3R,543,45%.20

seTE fHeTam™T & &Y
AT FRET FTINT F2 ETETAT WA F

TR TTAT Yadael [qodT AUHT T H

R,993,¥%¥.R¢

934,530,0309.%0

(R%,90%,49R.R3)

AT HETAHT @ €W Hi aard / (FTfea)
9 ST 3093 VRE & (FH) /A

(%9054 R .R3)
(8R,5%%,%5¥.%9)

7| 9 fastn st/ (fral s

R%,R3%,555. %%

AR AT A SRR fE wY S/ ()

(¥4,%3R,%0%.%9)

¥ e smeTiET WU SR Y "/ ()

92,353, 915.9%

i fad IEETRl TFE wY g/ ()

(0.00)
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HA dep ferfiics

<&'<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
HaABl A, HABT AT

ATIAT ¥ .95
310 Jufa
TG HATT RO\%Y
e %
B oq a9 o 9y T aw
fershirept AT Iqered FFra - - -
o+ 7 ey qraaes - - -
fom it faer - - -
fert aifep sarer 33,549,343 33,938,343 ¥¥ 333,295
feret =ifep smeareit ¥34,93% ¥3Y,9% R,005 4%
AR ST 20,344,994 20,244, 1] £5,%33,893
ATIRT STHAT R™,50,5\% RY,530,59% 93,40% 9%
T FHATT @ %, ¥% ¥LS S,4¥%, YU 33,3%¥,055
a7 e 385,004,239 3%5,04,3W%R Q¥ ¥ER, AR
T S @R ¥4 ¥ 538,400 ¥4 ¥ 4R¥ 400 ¥ 595 903
AT %90
d® aen fadia JiRreTens fddf ansl
UTITE HHT=I 094
& g%
feaon 7| a9 a7 qu T
AT FoReT fAad - - -
R AF AT Y9%,¥ 00,000 49%,%¥ 00,000 8,399,000
S qeT A Heerezare 99 fAe R,35%,95933 R,45¥, 95933 3,3%%,330,39Y
THATR JAT AT @Ter - - _
I - - _
s & qon faefi demeer fod ate %,R0%,959,:339 90,90% 959,334 3,333,4¥930¢
Balances maintained by other local financial institutions with the bank is presented under this head.
AT ¥ 4=
oluTet IMeg; debotrs forof aial
UTTE HHT=T 0%
Bl EED
feraor o9 au g au T qu
YT AL FFATE TAFAT 98, %Y 9495 9, %494 95 -
TPAT TRAAT iAeT - - -

FYTeT TS FFATE lender of last resort e

T @NE GERIAT o fafth TRUHT frdra (securities) -

A AT Feperrs fa o wwr T

430,900,000

430,900,000

9,09%,%5'9,000

STEAT AT T Shelte fored afent

43,4494

438,419

9,09%,359,000

The amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance from NRB, standing liquidity facilities, lender of last resort facility, sale and purchase
agreements. Other payable to NRB includes deposit from NRB.
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parH e forfads

<&"<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
Bl AP, HABT AT

AT ¥.9%
sRaféqt fadir 3umroiss
ATITS HAT 094
e ERi
B oq a9 o 9y T aw

FRF R AR LT
TSGR w@Tq - -
HeT = - -
st fafraa qeprar - -
a= _ _
few e fAf e
TSR w@Tq - -
HeT = - -
i fafa qwhmar %,999,R¥% £999,3¥ -
¥ - _
s feafas fadi SuweuEs %999,3¥% £,999,R¥% -

The Forward Exchange Contracts are derivative products used by the bank for hedging purpose as a regular treasury activities. The gross derivative assets
and derivative liabilities are netted off and shown separately in the financial statements as derivative assets or liabilities as a part of risk management.

FTFAT ¥.R0
aAsHD e
ATITE HATT 0%
e EE]
foeom 79 Ty o a9 T o
HWIF YEh
aratas (qEdl) faT 9%,39¥ 990,000 9%,3¥ 990,000 93,53%,599,949
AAIH T@T I g FET 5,309,239,239 5,R09839,43 ¥,¥5%,5 %% 3%
=Tl 8 9,9%19,39%,0%4 9,19%9,39%,02% 9,309,29% 590
T 44,993,300 ¥Y,9193,300 9% % ¥R,\%3
ZfHIT e -
At (qgdn) fHEd 99,19%9,%39,903 99,19%9,%39,903 93,9'9%,995, %94
= e 9%,335,R33,41 9%,3%5,333,44 93995, % ¥ ¥ 50%
=t faar RR¥,5%4,%1% .RY¥,5%4,59% YAERFN
= 99%9,0%5 543 9,9¥9,0%5 Y3 Y33,493,R%0
ST e e YR,M¥E 33 NIR KR4 ¥, 33, X9R %9539, 961,23

Deposits from customers include accrued interest payable as on reporting date.
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8.20.9 IMEH®! forYudY IGT deniforar favoinor

oaTH e forfaids

<&'<® KUMARI BANK LIMITED

HaABl A, HABT AT

HE 5%
g aw a9 o Ta ax

TATEAT wAT 15,533,359,3%% 45,5 33,3%9,R¥4% ¥Y,R0Y%,59R,RY
a4 -

A e 903,039,993 Y03, 03q,93 Q9% ¥ 55 35
Iz fgaq arsTe 3,2%5,09% 3,2%5,09% 3,555,314
T %,39%,90% %,39%,90% %,509,%3R
EIEERCE -

=SS AT _

a 9,53 9,53% sis
ST 42,465,334, U9R 1R,% 65,33, 49% ¥\9%R9,9%% R3R

Currency wise deposit include NPR converted value of deposit on different currencies as on reporting date.

faret qifds waif AUy

TG T R0y,

AT .39

b

79 Ty

T qu

eyl qmuEt

BEIEICECAES

AT FET

qaq

STHAT

fareft wmwet

faeelt & qur fadig e

Fguter faem g%

A G

STHAT

st fo atfer st ot

ATITE HAT R0VY

AT ¥ 3R

b

o9 au

T qo

ATIRATET (redundancy) &1 STHT ST

AR AT T

AT HTAAT TAT FBT AT AIHAT

SAVEATH FERIAT

B

R,R¥, M0

R,R¥q, %10

9,4%9,¥%3

STHRT

R,R¥, 40

R,R¥q, %40

9,4%9,¥%3

The other provision is created for the audit fee payable for each reporting periods.

TIMD UG 2003/ 08 I R008/GY | 183
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<&"<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
Bl AP, HABT AT

8.22.9 Iaxn®! Jfafdfa
TR EED
B oq a9 o 9y T aw

q SRl Hredrd 9,%%¥9,%%3 9,%%9,%%3 ¥\9¥ §00
T o TRTH e %2035 %2035 q,0%%,5%3
Tg a9 IUINT TR TN - - -
aq a9 RRaT quepT saer - - -
TATCAH IT HCR AT - - -
BTG FRATTHT HISATT ],%%94,940 ],%3%94,940 q,4%9,%¥%3

FTFAT ¥.R3

3163 GIfRica
ATITE HATT 004
TR EEd
B 79 a9 ol T an

afeaifrd FE=RT @1 AT T i 45 ,9%%,953 45,9%%,953 R, ¥q9 %09
feerepifer Far faar arqaer aifac q0%,%\9% 45y q0R %9% 45y q0%,539,550
FTHIAT HHAT AT - - -
faer arehr faesr 985,509,299 985,509,299 ¥0,599%9%
Ffged qun awFiar 339,30%,5%9 339,30%,5%9 R1%,905 ¥9%
fqgrqar fa=r ater e R%,955,5%% R%,955,5%% R¥q,5%9,054
Fracrar fa= atedr = q3Y, %95 934, ¥\% -
AT AR AR ST - - -
fae ateer arareT X5 Y 1SS G R5Y¥ U5% 5,5%3,3N
foredrar et seaiaert arfaca - - -
el afefy ae=d) A QU UY ¥, 0%% QUIUY ¥, 0%% 992, ¥\93 435
sl ¥R %3 530 W%, 93¢ Y59 931,99%,53%
Skl 9,253,903 0¥5 9,253,593 %R0 4,090, 4 ¥ 30%

8.23.9 uRenfta ctret Aol (Defined Benefit) JodcEl GIRICAEH
fairar sraarert faaror (@raard) AT s@ihd TRUFT THHES A aHIiaTH B |

TR EEd
feeoT a9 Ty o a9 T qo

TR BTIET AT AR BTAB] T

FITHAT AT TTTcA®H BTAR T R 493 UKY RO 93 URY R¥T,¥R3 0%
TS FA FTAD qA R0 93 UKY R0 493 4KY R¥5,¥R3 904
FfaeT AT THRT (plan assets) F1 HaR T R9%,29%,959 R9%,%9%,959 9%%,009Y% 1 0¥
gz Il el qed 45,9%%,953 45,9%%,953 5R,¥99,%09
i AT TSI FEIT @i aTtcd 45,9%%,953 45,9%%,953 ©R,%¥99509
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Ffaar o1 Gt (plan assets) AT

HA dep ferfiics

<&'<® KUMARI BANK LIMITED

HaABl A, HABT AT

f TR e
g ad g o T ay
gledl i (securities)
TWER q7E
& e 95,295,959 95,295,959 95§,0094,40%
IqT
ST R1%,29%,959 R1%,29%,959 9%%,09¢ L 0¥
Actual return on plan assets
8.23.3 uRaNfta ofret ANsTon Aeafosr GIRICAd SIGTDY eI URddor
& TR &
o9 a9 o a9 T ay
T AT gfesifyd @ Ao gvater it Q¥ ¥_3 Q0% ¥5,¥%3 904 9¥%,205,5%%
faanfse (actuarial) =TTl (95,999,5%0) (95,99,5%0) R 590 ¥
ATSTATATE T AT (9995,43%) (8995,434%) (,9%¥5,0%3)
=T GiAeT @ q41 AT 43,490,54% YR,490,54% 30,553,095
ATITG HAT-TAT IR AT o7 Featee ariaes VY Q93 4RY Y 993, 4%Y X5, ¥%3 904
8.23.8 Aatol JoUftid! BAR Foen uRada
N— e EED
a9 Ty aq au T qu
HTA0 /T ATSTAT THTART BA T 95%,004, 4 0¥ 9%%,00Y 40 990,9%'9 VoY
FATSTATHT T&TH TR TR $9’4% 59 VR YR 59% §Y,09% 903
T e @ (8995, 434%) (9395 %34) (2,9%5,0%3)
famfeer ATRTR(ATRT) - - _
AT FHAATE AUTETT HTgaT
ATITE AATTHT TSTAT FFITaeh! Hax Jed R1%,29%,954 R9%,%9%,9549 955,094, 0¥%
8.23 .Y TIBI IGATSHAT AHD ol ARTDY IDA
& TR Eea
g ag g o T ay
a1 gl @< 33,355,439 33,35%,439 99,34%,93R
EREEIEIC] 9%,33%,3%% 9%,33%,3%% 9R,4 0%, R¥%
TS AHTAETE AYTETd BIgal
STHAT %3,490,54% 43,490,54% 30,5%%,09¢
823.¢ 316 faxqd 3RIEAT AT IBA
f TR S
o9 au g aw T qu
fawfees (ATRT) /AR 95,9%,5%0) 95,99,5%0) R 590 ¥
STHAT (95,9%,5%0) 95,9%,5%0) R 590 R¥ 5
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parH e forfads

<&"<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
Bl AP, HABT AT

8.23.b f[AATSHID 3TGAGIEH
f TR %
79 a9 ol ] T an
Discount &% R % R % 5%
ST AHAaTE AYTETT RTgaT 0% 0% 09,
taerel qoa gie % 2% %
Withdrawl <X % R % %
HAT ¥ .R¥
IR} AR et sroTUA
ATITE HATT 0%
& I %
Tq Ty I a9 T qo
T HAATS ATRT AT [EATawT S@re T Sy TRws /v 97 - _
ARG Heaw T ST TRITH AT T - -
T _ -
AT ¥.RY
JPR30T RIRIUD JBRIB afdd Gifkica
ATITE HATT 0%
& g %
g ag a9 o T ay
=TT B AUTIPR AT - -
TTHT g drad ATIHR T - -
T - _
ST - _
31121%‘1 ¥ %
MR it
ATITE HATT 0%
& e ¥
Tq a9 ol T as
BIEIRIES MALEEASASE MAREENSASE 4,R%R, ¥4, 53
e iepPea i - _ _
T TG AAMIHR AR - - .
Perpetual 597 - - -
S B9%3,3%%,]\%3 ©9%3,30¥,%\%3 %,2%%,¥%4,533
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8.2§.9 JATERUT IRR

oaTH e forfaids

<&'<® KUMARI BANK LIMITED

HaABl A, HABT AT

U 5%
iisas g aw a9 o Ta ax
900,000,000, JTIRI A gfq . 900 90,000,000 000 40,000,000 000
189,533,240 FERT R 9fq ¥, 900 B9%3,30% 93 4,2%%,¥Y 53
99,£33,34.0 FERI WA 9T & Q00 MRS AN 4,%%%,¥%4,5%
ST MALEEAS AL 4,%5%%,¥%4,5%%
8.26.2 JARIROT AR Idifdica
— Bk a
aq au a0 a9 T qW
% % T
T EqTRAeT
IS TFHR - - -
% RN TATTATTS YT FLATES - - -
I SIS I HEIES - - -
ERIEERIGH ¥ 45% R.%% 93%,290,50%
TR Q4. ¥R% R9.9¥% %,53% 154,95
I - - _
FRfirw et - - -
ST 900% 900% 4,%5%%,¥%4,5%%
ATIAT ¥ .30
319151 a1 DIUET
AT HATT 0%
Y EEd
B Tq a9 ol ] T an
e ST BT q,35% 858,95 ¥ 9,35%,85R%,95¥ 9,09%,%99,R¥3
e FIERT BT 3R,554,45% 3R,554,45% 3¥,305,9%R
HEATTS AHIAF JTRRIA FT 4%,2%0,%53 14,4%0,%53 %,949,5\99
IS foRd SIS P - - -
=TT P %9990 ¥q% %9990, %95 -
T FATASA F1T 4,000,000 ¥,000,000 ¥,5%5,3%%
ST SRIST &9 - - -
FeIf TAHATET - - -
HAX HA B (},390,553) (],390,553) 93,905,339
FATATYT FTHFT BT - - _
farmnfye ATt/ (FrRT) P (40,553,55%5) (40,553,555) (£¥,03% 9%0)
fertrer e - - -
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parH e forfads

<&"<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
Bl AP, HABT AT

I B 3R,R¥R,¥0¥ 3R,R¥R,¥0¥ %%,040,3%R
. FHEET AT BT 9,94%,9\A 9,944,919 ¥,359595
.S FHTEANT B 30,%R% IR 30,%R% IR 30,¥RY% 3R
3 FH/OTA TR BT - - 39,955, ¥4R
ikl 9,9%,5%4,999 9,9%¥,5%9,999 9,938, 39% &3
duford ST HY

General reserve maintained as per the regulatory requirements. The regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of net profit until the reserve is twice the paid
up capital and thereafter minimum 10% of the net profit

Jdcdl Afdrmor dy

Exchange equalization is maintained as per requirement of NRB Directive, which is set at 25% of foreign exchange realuation gain on the translation to
the reporting currency. This reserve is accumulation of such gains over the years

iRRAId AP ITRGIRICT DI
Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve is created as per NRB directive, which is set aside of 1% of net profit of previous year. The balance in the reserve
is the amount which is not exhausted in the current fiscal year to be utilized for Corporate Social Responsibility Objective in the coming years.

foRITIaIPRT DIy

Regulatory Reserve is created due to the changes in the NFRS conversion and adoption with effect in the retained earnings of the bank

cIoTTell AARNSTA Py

Investment Adjustment Reserve is created as per the directive of NRB created against the quoted as well as unqoted investments

BRR oA DY
The fair value reserve is created against the valuation of the investment of the bank as per the fair valuation of the investment made, quoted as available
for sale investments.

famfSod arw1/ (ehadre) &Y

The reserve created against the actuarial valutation of gratuity benefit to the employee of the bank

31021 ®IY

Other Reserves include reserve created for the Employee Training Reserve created as per the NRB directive, the allocation is utilized in the current year
and remaining balances is transferred to training reserve which is created to be utilized for training expenses in coming years. In the previous year, the
other reserve also includes deferred tax reserve. Capital Adjustment Reserve is created against the income recognition by capitalization in loans, for which
capitalization is allowed by NRB, but distribution is not done till the settlement of the capitalized interest part, this is also included in the other reserves.
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8.2C.Y dfaT anfdren

Tax settlement up to the FY 2066/67 has been completed. Against tax reassessment order of FY 2067/68, 2068/69 and 2069/70, the bank has filed a case
at Revenue Tribunal. For the FY 2070/71, the bank has filed a case for Administrative Review. The bank had acquired Kasthamandap Development Bank
on 15th Asadh 2074, whose tax assessment of FY 2066/67 and 2067/68 case is filed at Administrative Review; and Administrative Review had asked for
clarification from the Large Tax Payer’s Office, which is under process.
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Disclosures and Additional Information

Risk Management

5.1.1.a. Risk management framework

All of the Bank's activities involve, to varying degrees, the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
risks or combinations of risks. The Bank has placed high importance to identification, assessment and well thought
out handling of all the prominent risk that it faces or likely to face in execution of its activities. The Bank is quite
aware about the risk profile of the business and is committed to establish a strong Risk Management System in
the bank. An established risk management framework ensures oversight of and accountability for the effective
management of risk at Country and regional business levels. For managing risks effectively, the Bank has an
independent risk management department to assess its position regarding each separate risk area including Credit
Risk, Market Risk, Operational Risk, Compliance & Legal Risk and Reputation Risk. The management through
Risk Management Committee (RMC) comprising 4 members, 2 of which represent BOD and one from Operating
Unit and another one from Credit Risk. Risk management is an all round practice in the bank. Every business unit
and department is well informed about its activities and risks corresponding to those activities.

5.1.1.b. Risk appetite and tolerance limits for key types of risks

Risk appetite in the context of Kumari Bank Limited is defined as the level and nature of risk that the bank is
willing to take for pursuing its mission on behalf of its shareholders, subject to constraints imposed by other
stakeholders, such as debt holders, regulators, and customers. It provides a framework for strategic decision
making for the Bank.

The Board of Directors of the bank is responsible for setting the bank's tolerance for the risks. The Bank sets out
the aggregated level and risk types it accepts in order to achieve its business objectives in the Risk Management
Policy of the Bank. Risk strategy of the bank shall reflect the Bank's business preferences and conduct, and shall
be aligned with its risk tolerance capacity.

The Bank's actual performance is reported against approved risk profile and risk appetite, enabling senior
management to monitor the risk profile and guide business activity to balance risk and return. The Bank shall
state the business it wants to undertake sector wise, location wise and product wise. Accordingly the Bank shall
formulate a risk tolerance level or risk appetite.

Following steps shall be undertaken to formulate a risk appetite statement for the Bank:

Steps Description

Identification of all material risks.

1. Identify & Classify Risks Classify the risks as acceptable or unacceptable risks.

o Identify risk and return measures based on benchmarking with the
peers.

e For example, proportion of NPL to total loans serves as a good measure
to quantify risk appetite for credit risk

e The peer group of the Bank shall comprise of bank's functioning in

2. Identify risk return matrices

3. Identify peer group same or similar geographical regions, comparable size and business
strategies
e Measures chosen are scrutinized among the peers for identifying
4. Analyze, measure and drivers and set tolerance limits for risk measures and target levels for
formulate risk appetite return measures.
statements o These risk appetite statements shall drive the business growth strategy
of the Bank
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The risk appetite is proposed by the management and reviewed by the board level risk management committee.
Stress testing

Stress Testing is the process where a number of statistically defined possibilities are determined based on the
most damaging combination of events, and the loss they would produce. It is a valuable risk management tool
which studies the impact of unlikely but not impossible stress events. A stress event is an exceptional but credible
event to which a bank's portfolio is exposed. As a part of its risk measurement mechanism, Kumari Bank Ltd.
puts an emphasis on evaluating where the Bank stands under stressful market conditions. It helps to provide
information on the kinds of conditions under which strategies or position, the Bank would be most vulnerable and
thus, strategies are devised such that such circumstance doesn't arise and/or to ensure least impact upon the Bank
from such scenarios even if they do occur.

In conducting stress tests, the Bank gives special consideration to instruments or markets where concentrations
exist as such positions may be more difficult to liquidate or offset in stressful situations. The Bank considers both
historical market events as well as forward-looking scenarios and also considers worst case scenarios in addition to
more probable events. Ad hoc scenarios are also prepared reflecting specific market conditions and for particular
concentrations of risk that arise within the businesses. For example, credit shock scenario is measured in terms of
deterioration of assets quality in terms of the adequacy of capital of the bank.

The stress testing methodology assumes that scope for management action would be limited during a stress
event, reflecting the stress scenarios in Credit Shocks, Market Shocks, Liquidity Shock and other factors of stress
scenarios in the banking sector. The Board of the bank has responsibility for reviewing stress exposures and, where
management oversight, monitoring, evaluation and reporting at regular intervals. Regular stress test scenarios
are applied and the report on regular basis reviewed by the Board of the bank along with discussions at Risk
Management Committee (RMC).

The stress testing mechanism at KBL aims to address:

a)  Concentration risk;

b) Illiquidity of markets in stressed market conditions;

¢) Credit Shocks- CAR perspectives and NPL perspectives;

d)  Market Interest rate risk scenarios;

e) Exchange rate and equity investment fluctuations risks; and

f)  Other Risks

KBL's stress tests are both of a quantitative and qualitative nature, incorporating credit risk, market risk and liquidity
risk aspects. Quantitative criteria identify plausible stress scenarios to which bank could be exposed. Qualitative criteria
emphasizes that two major goals of stress testing are to evaluate the capacity of the bank's capital to absorb potential large
losses and to identify steps the Bank can take to reduce its risk and conserve capital. This assessment is integral to setting and
evaluating the Bank's strategy and the results of stress testing are routinely communicated to RMC and the board of the bank.

The Bank carries out stress testing in three broad areas based on credit shocks, market shocks and liquidity shocks which are
discussed below:

L

Credit Shocks :

The Bank subjects its portfolios to a series of simulated stress scenarios. The Bank stresses its portfolios with the
shocks of the magnitude experienced elsewhere, even when the Bank has never been exposed to those in the past.
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The Bank has formulated stress testing framework where various historical scenarios have been analyzes. The
Bank carries out stress testing in line with the stress testing framework on a regular basis as prescribed by Stress
Testing Framework or NRB guidelines issued from time to time, under Case basis or collective basis of CAR and
NPL perspective along with Concentration stress risks.

Market Shocks:

In addition to the above credit shocks, the Bank has also developed stress tests which it identifies as most adverse
based on the characteristics of its market portfolio. The interest rate risks, exchange rate risks and equity price risks
are evaluated and the results are reviewed periodically.

Liquidity Shocks:

Stress test scenarios are continually reviewed and updated for the liquidity risk scenarios whereby, various factors
as impact of continual withdrawals on case or collective basis on CAR and liquidity positions are stressed. Also,
concentration risks are also evaluated and the various scenarios are developed to assess the risks possessed due to
high level of deposit concentrations.

Results of stress testing

The result of stress testing is communicated to the Board of Directors and senior management on regular basis. The
same is also discussed in detail in Risk Management Committee. The report of stress testing is also shared with
Nepal Rastra Bank as per the requirement of Unified Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

Scenario analysis and Sensitivity Analysis

Scenario analysis and sensitivity analysis is conducted through the model developed by Bank Supervision
Department, Nepal Rastra Bank. However, on need basis, the Bank also adopts other techniques and develops
other scenarios on case to case basis.

Credit Risk

Credit risks are the risk associated with the probability of default of loan provided by the bank. Hence, the credit
risks comprises of the highest risk exposure of the bank. Management of the credit risks largely signifies the risk
management of the bank as whole.

Credit risk:
o Is measured as the amount which could be lost if a customer or counterparty fails to make repayments.
o Is monitored within limits, approved by individuals within a framework of delegated authorities. These

limits represent the peak exposure or loss to which the Bank could be subjected should the customer or
counterparty fail to perform its contractual obligations;

o Is managed through a robust risk control framework which outlines clear and consistent policies, principles
and guidance for credit risk management.

Credit Risk Management

The Bank has its own Credit Risk Policy and Strategy to handle the Credit Risk Management philosophy that
involves a continual measurement of probability of default/loss; identification of possible risks and mitigations.
In order to manage and eliminate the credit risk, the Bank has a practice of maintaining the best quality assets
in its book. The Bank's Credit Policy elaborates detailed procedures for proper risk management. The Bank has
delegated credit approval limits to various officials to approve and sanction various amount of credit request based
on their individual expertise and risk judgment capability.
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As a check and balance mechanism, each credit case requires dual approval. Regular monitoring of the credit
portfolio ensures that the Bank does not run the risk of concentration of portfolio in a particular business sector or a
single borrower. Similarly the Bank also exercises controlled investment policy with adequately equipped resource
looking after the investment decisions.

To cap these all, the Bank has strong Credit processing channels in place comprising of various Directors from the
Board of the Bank which reviews all credit proposals beyond a specified amount.

Impairment assessment and credit risk mitigation

The Bank creates impairment allowances for impaired loans promptly and appropriately.

Impairment assessment methodology

a.

Impairment of Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost

The Bank first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are
individually significant. When an account is classified as default or when the Bank no longer expect to recover the
principle or interest due on a loan in full or in accordance with the original terms and conditions, it is assessed for
impairment. If exposures are secured, the current net realizable value of the collateral will be taken into account
when assessing the need for an impairment allowance. When the net present value of the collateral is sufficiently
adequate to cover the outstanding facilities, impairment is not calculated for such cases.

In the event Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics such as collateral
type, past due status and other relevant factors and collectively assesses them for impairment. However, assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

Impairment is assessed on a collective basis in two circumstances:

> To cover losses which have been incurred but have not yet been identified on loans subject to individual assessment;
and

> For homogeneous groups of loans those are not considered individually significant.

Incurred but not yet identified impairment

Individually assessed financial assets for which no evidence of loss has been specifically identified on an individual basis are
grouped together according to their credit risk characteristics for the purpose of calculating an estimated collective loss. This
reflects impairment losses that the bank has incurred as a result of events occurring before the reporting date, which the Bank
is not able to identify on an individual loan basis and that can be reliably estimated.

These losses will only be individually identified in the future. As soon as information becomes available which identifies

losses on individual financial assets within the group, those financial assets are removed from the group and assessed on an
individual basis for impairment.

The collective impairment allowance is determined after taking into account:

»  Historical Loss Experience in portfolios of similar credit risk; and

»  Management's experienced judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual level
of inherent losses at the reporting date is like to be greater or less than that suggested by historical experience.
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Homogeneous groups of Financials Assets

Statistical methods are used to determine impairment losses on a collective basis for homogenous groups of financial assets.
Losses in these groups of financial assets are recorded on an individual basis when individual financial assets are written off,
at which point they are removed from the group.

Bank uses the following method to calculate historical loss experience on collective basis:

After grouping of loans on the basis of homogeneous risks, the Bank uses net flow rate method. Under this methodology, the
movement in the outstanding balance of customers into default categories over the periods are used to estimate the amount
of financial assets that will eventually be irrecoverable, as a result of the events occurring before the reporting date which the
Bank is not able to identify on an individual loan basis.

Under this methodology, loans are grouped into ranges according to the number of days in arrears and statistical analysis is
used to estimate the likelihood that loans in each range will progress through the various stages of delinquency and ultimately
prove irrecoverable.

Current economic conditions and portfolio risk factors are also evaluated when calculating the appropriate level of allowance
required covering inherent loss. These additional macro and portfolio risk factors may include:

> Recent loan portfolio growth and product mix
Unemployment rates

Gross Domestic Production (GDP)Growth
Inflation

Interest rates

Changes in government laws and regulations

Property prices

VV VY VY VYV

Payment status

But, the amount of provision to be created against Loans and Advances shall be higher of the following two amounts:
i) Impairment calculated as per Impairment Assessment Methodology as described in Pt. 5.1.2. ¢ above or,

ii) Loan Loss Provision calculated as per the provisions of Directive No. 2, Unified Directives, 2075.
Impairment calculation by following the methodology described in Pt. 5.1.2.c above

i)  Firstly, top borrowers constituting around 25%-30% of total funded exposure of the Bank is subjected to Individual
Impairment Testing in each FY 2072-73, 2073-74 and 2074-75.

i) Loans and advances as filtered out following pt-(i) were tested for individual impairment including following criteria
but not limited to:

»  Known Cash Flow difficulties experienced by the borrowers:

Past due contractual payments of either principal or interest;

Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

The probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; and

A significant downgrading in credit rating by an external credit rating agency.

YV V V V V

Bank's aggregate exposure to the customer;
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»  The viability of the customer's business model and their capacity to trade successfully out of financial difficulties
and generate sufficient cash flows to service debt obligations;

A\

The amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;

Y

The extent of other creditors 'commitments ranking ahead of, or pari-pasu with the Bank and the likelihood of
other creditors continuing to support the company;

»  The realizable value of security and likelihood of successful repossession;

iii) As per the impairment testing conducted as per Pt. (ii), only few loans and advances were identified as individually
impaired in each FY 2072-73, 2073-74 and 2074-75.Amount (Rs.)

Particulars 2072/73 2073/74 2074/75
Total Individual Impairment as per NAS 39 4,520,274 45,268,467 19,017,389

iv)  All loans and advances were then grouped into homogenous types such as home loans, auto loans, term loans, etc to
calculate collective impairment.

v) Collective impairment was calculated following net flow rate method. Under this methodology, the movements in the
outstanding balance of customers into default categories over the periods are used to estimate the amount of financial
assets that will eventually be irrecoverable, as a result of the events occurring before the reporting date which the Bank
is not able to identify on an individual loan basis.

vi) Collective impairment as per the method mentioned in Pt. (v) in each FY 2072-73, 2073-74 and 2074-75 is shown

below:
Amount (Rs.)
Particulars 2072/73 2073/74 2074/75
I"l\"](Xaslgollective Impairment as per paragraph 63 of 133,033,132 243,610,882 318,013,320

Write off of loans and receivables

Loans (and the related impairment allowance) are normally written off, either partially or in full, when there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. Where loans are secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceeds from the realization of security.
In circumstances where the realizable value of any collateral has been determined and there is no reasonable expectation of
further recovery, write off may be earlier.

Collateral management

The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes in various
forms such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and
credit enhancements such as netting agreements. The fair value of collateral is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception
and based on the guidelines issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on
data provided by third parties such as independent valuator and audited financial statements.
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Credit Risk Mitigants availed under CRM

Types of eligible credit risk mitigants used and the benefits availed under CRM as at 16 July 2018 are as follows:

Particulars Eligible CRM (Rs. 000)
Deposit with Bank 292,786
Deposit with Other Bank / FI -
Total 292,786

b.

Impairment of Financial Assets — Available for Sale

For available for sale financial investments, Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence
that an investment is impaired.

In the case of debt instruments, Bank assesses individually whether there is objective evidence of impairment based
on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognized in the Income Statement. Future interest income is based on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase
can be objectively related to a credit event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the impairment loss is
reversed through the Income Statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective evidence would also include a 'significant’
or 'prolonged' decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss is removed from equity and recognized in the Statement
of profit or loss. However, any subsequent increase in the fair value of an impaired available for sale equity security is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Bank writes-off certain available for sale financial investments when they are determined to be uncollectible.

5.1.3.a. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity is crucial to the ongoing viability of any financial institution. Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to a
bank arising from either its inability to meet its obligations or to fund increases in assets as they fall due without
incurring unacceptable cost or losses. Liquidity is the ability of an institution to transform its assets into cash or
its equivalent in a timely manner at a reasonable price to meet its commitments as they fall due. Liquidity risk is
considered a major risk for banks. It arises when the cushion provided by the liquid assets are not sufficient enough
to meet its obligation. In such a situation banks often meet their liquidity requirements from market. Funding
through market depends upon liquidity in the market and borrowing bank's liquidity.

Liquidity risk is:
. Measured using maturity ladder analysis
. Monitored against the Bank's liquidity risk management framework and overseen by Asset and Liability

Management Committee.

. Managed on a stand-alone basis with no reliance on any related party or the Nepal Rastra Bank, unless
this represents routine established business as usual market practice.

5.1.3.b. Management of liquidity risk

The board has ensured that the bank has necessary liquidity risk management framework and bank is capable
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of confronting uneven liquidity scenarios. The bank has formulated liquidity risk management policy, risk
management policies which are recommended by senior management and approved by the Board of Directors.
The bank utilizes flow measures to determine its cash position. A maturity ladder analysis estimates a bank's
inflows and outflows and thus net deficit or surplus (GAP) over a time horizon. A maturity ladder is a useful device
to compare cash inflows and outflows both on a day-to-day basis and over a series of specified time periods as
presented in the NRB Ni.Fa.No.5.1 under NRB Directives No. 5.

Liquidity of the bank is assessed, measured and maintained by Financial Market Department by ensuring minimal
compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank prescribed ratios such as CRR, SLR, and Credit to Deposit Ratio and Liquidity
Coverage Ratio. The department also maintains investments over and above the prescribed limit to cope up with
the unprecedented liquidity risks that the Bank is ever exposed to.

Market Risk

Market risks are the risk of losses in on-balance sheet and off- balance sheet positions arising from adverse
movements in market prices. The major constituents of market risks are:

a) The risks pertaining to interest rate related instruments;
b) Foreign exchange risk (including gold positions) throughout the bank; and

c) The risks pertaining to investment in equities and commodities.

5.1.3.d. Management of Market Risk

The Bank has Asset Liability Management (ALM) Policy, Market Risk Management Policy, Investment Policy
along with Treasury manuals in place, which serves as a guide to address the market risk of the Bank. As for the
monitoring of market and liquidity risk, the Bank has an active Assets and Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) in place which meets regularly and takes stock of the Bank's assets and liability position and profile
of assets & liabilities, monitors risks arising from changes in exchange rates in foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange positions are managed by financial market consisting of front office dealers with specific dealing limits
and an independent back office. The back office executes the deals made by the dealers and also monitors the
liquidity position of the Bank. For the purpose of proper check and control, the front dealing room of financial
market and the back office has different reporting line.

Apart from Financial Market (or front office) and back office, the bank also has Treasury Mid Office; which works
as a third eye which assesses the risks and timely evaluates and report to the senior management, whose reporting
chain is also separate to the front and back office.

5.1.3.e. Market Risk Assessment Methodology

Out of the various components of market risk, foreign exchange risk is the predominant risk in Nepal. Thus, a net
open position approach has been adopted to measure the operational risk exposure of the bank in aggregation and
the capital requirement in commensurate of the same as set out by Capital Adequacy Framework issued by Nepal
Rastra Bank.

5.1.4.a. Operational Risk

5.1.4.b.

Operational risks are risk of loss resulting from inadequate internal processes, people and systems, or from external
events. Operational risks are highly important as it entails cent percent loss to the bank in the event of its occurrence.

Management of Operational Risk

As a part of monitoring operational risks, the Bank has devised operational manuals for various Banking functions,
which are reviewed and modified time to time as per the changing business context.
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The Bank has adopted dual control mechanism in its all operational activities where each and every financial and
non financial transaction is subject to approval from an authority higher than the transaction initiator. Regular
review meetings are conducted to assess the adequacy of risk monitoring mechanism and required changes are
made as and when felt necessary. Independent reconciliation unit is established to conduct daily reconciliation of
all Nostro / agency accounts, Inter-Branch and Inter-Department account.

The Bank has independent internal audit, which reports to the Audit Committee of the Bank. The Audit Committee
meets frequently and reviews the business process and financial position of the Bank. In order to have better focus
on managing operational risks across branches and to monitor them from Head Office level, the Bank has separate
Branch Operation Department and Operation Risk Management & Compliance Department at Head Office. The
Bank has strong MIS in place to monitor the regular operational activities.

5.1.4.c. Operational Risk Assessment Methodology

Operational risks are assessed employing the Basic Indicators Approach as set out by Capital Adequacy Framework
issued by Nepal Rastra Bank. The Basic Indicators Approach assesses operational risk in aggregation and is
calculated by multiplying the operational risk capital charge by 10. Bank assesses the operational risk based on the
past operational loss due to system failure, staff embezzlement and other external factors which is considered at
the time of calculation of economic capital.

5.1.5.a. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

5.2.

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities,
observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities,
observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair
value measurement in both cases is the same — to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset
or to transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds
the asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:
Level-1 inputs

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded using Level
1 inputs.

Level-2 inputs

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level-3 inputs

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Capital Management

i. Qualitative disclosures

Capital management approach is driven by its desire to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business and to meet the regulatory capital requirements.
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Capital planning and management is essential to ensure adequate level of capital is available at all times.
In order to be prepared for distressed economic environments, capital management plan of the Bank
incorporate various potential scenarios and is responsive to changes in the economy, market, competitive
or political landscape, or other external factors.

Following elements are taken into consideration while devising an effective capital management plan for
the Bank:

. Minimum capital requirements as per NRB

. Business growth prospects and risks

. Potential capital raising instruments such as equity, preference stocks, bonds etc
. Various stress scenarios

. Others as considered necessary by the senior management

Paid up Share Capital of the bank

Over the years the Bank has raised share capital as follows:

Cumulative Paid

Fiscal Year X Remarks
up Capital

2057/58 350,000,000

2058/59 350,000,000

2059/60 350,000,000

2060/61 500,000,000 | Initial Public Offering of NPR. 150 million

2061/62 625,000,000 | Right share issue of NPR. 125 million (25%)

2062/63 750,000,000 | Bonus share issue of NPR. 125 million (20%)

2063/64 900,000,000 | Bonus share issue of NPR. 150 million (20%)

2064/65 1,070,000,000 Right share issue of NPR. 180 million (20%). NPR. 170 million capitalized on balance
sheet date and balance on subsequent year.
In the fiscal year 2064/65, the bank had proposed 10 % bonus share and 15 % right

2065/66 1,186,099,200 | share. 10 % bonus share had been capitalized as on balance sheet date pending
issuance of right share.
In the FY 2065/66, the bank had issued 10% bonus share including to those who
were released from black list during the year. Further, right share of NPR. 1,080,000

2066/67 1,306,015,920 issued on FY 2064/65 relating to blacklisted shareholders are included in current
year's capital subsequent to their release from black list.
In the FY 2067/68, the bank capitalized NPR. 178,200,000 (15%) share capital
which was approved for issuance in fiscal year 2064/65. Further, the bank auctioned

2067/68 1,603,800,000 | 7841 numbers of shares that include right and bonus shares of subsequent years relating
to right share approved in FY 2064/65 but issued only in FY 2067/68.
Bonus share at the rate of 8% (NPR. 118,800,000) had been proposed in the FY 2067/68.

2068/69 1,603,800,000 | -

2069/70 1,828,332,000 | 14% bonus share of NPR. 224.532 million issued in the FY 2069/70.

2070/71 2,431,681,560 | 33% bonus share of NPR. 603,349,560 issued in the FY 2070/71

2071/72 2,699,166,532 | 11% bonus share of Rs. 267,484,972 issued in the FY 2071/72

2072/73 3,265,991,503 | 21% bonus share of Rs. 566,824,971 issued in the FY 2072/73
50% right share issued amounting to Rs. 1,349,583,266.00 before acquisition plus

2073/74 3,969,495,823 share capital of Rs. 1,353,921,054 added from acquisition.

2074/75 7,163,394,973 | 20% right share issued amounting to Rs. 1,193,559,650.00
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The proposed bonus share for the FY 2073/74 is proposed on 3™ December 2018 amounting to Rs. 913 Million; subsequent
to approval from AGM of the bank, the capital of the bank will reach Rs. 8076 Million including 20 percent right share issued
in FY 2074-75.

ii. Quantitative disclosures

1. Capital structure and capital adequacy
J Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components:
Rs. in '000
S.N. Particulars Amount
Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital) (CET1+ AT1) 9,770,377
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) 9,770,377
a | Paid Up Equity Share Capital 7,163,395
b | Equity Share Premium 54,803
¢ | Proposed Bonus Equity shares
d Statutory General Reserves 1,284,990
e Retained Earnings 1,527,639
f | Current year cumulative profit/(Loss)
g | Capital Adjustment Reserve 30,494
h | Capital Redemption Reserve
i Other Free Reserves 17,716
j Less: Intangible Assets
k | Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests 200,000
1 Less: Purchase of land and building in excess of limit and unutilized 108,660
m | Less: Other Deductions
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) -
. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components:
Rs. in '000
S.N. | Particulars Amount
a | Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Shares
b | Subordinated Term Debt
¢ | Hybrid Capital Instruments
d | General Loan Loss Provision 647,864
€ Investment Adjustment Reserve 5,000
f | Assets Revaluation Reserve
g | Exchange Equalization Reserve 39,686
h | Other Reserves
Total Tier 2 Capital 692,550
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. Deductions from Capital:

The Bank has investments of Rs. 200 million in the equity shares of Kumari Capital Ltd. which has been deducted
from the core capital while computing capital adequacy.

. Total Qualifying Capital: Rs. in '000
Particulars Amount
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) 9,770,377
Additional Tier 1 (AT1) -
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 692,550
Total Capital Fund 10,462,927
. Capital Adequacy Ratio:
Capital Adequacy Ratio Amount
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio 12.48%
Core Capital Ratio - Tier 1 12.48%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio (Tier 1 & Tier 2) 13.36%
. Internal approach of the Bank to assess capital adequacy

In order to be prepared for distressed economic environments, the Bank assesses the adequacy of its capital by
incorporating various potential scenarios and being responsive to changes in the economy, market, competitive or
political landscape, or other external factors.

Banks are faced with the challenge of developing internal procedures and systems in order to ensure that they possess
adequate capital resources in commensuration with all material risks posed to it by its operating activities. The bank has
devised Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP), which is a set of policies, methodologies, techniques
and procedures to assess the capital adequacy requirements in relation to bank's risk profile and effectiveness of its risk
management, control environment and strategic planning.

Following elements are taken into consideration while assessing capital adequacy of the Bank:
Minimum capital requirements as per NRB
Business growth prospects and risks

Potential capital raising instruments such as equity, preference stocks, bonds etc
Various stress scenarios

VVVYYV

Others as considered necessary by the senior management
Risk exposures
o Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk: Rs. in '000

Particulars Amount
Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 73,058,635
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 2,209,160
Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 41,658

g

Adjustments under Pillar II:

Add: 4% of Gross income of last FY due to supervisor is not satisfied with sound prac-

tice of management of operational risk (6.4 a 7) 728,000
Add: 3% of the total RWE due to supervisor is not satisfied with the overall risk man- 2259283
agement policies and procedures of the bank (6.4 a 9) T

Total Risk Weighted Exposure (After Pillar II Adjustment) 78,296,737
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Risk Weighted Exposures under different categories of Credit Risk:

Rs. in '000
S.N. Categories Rislé(x:?;esifileted
1 Claims on Government & Central Bank -
2 Claims on Other Financial Entities -
3 Claims on domestic banks that meet capital adequacy requirements 97,784
4 Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital adequacy requirements -
5 Claims on Foreign Banks (ECA 0-1) 151,510
6 Claims on foreign bank ( ECA 2) 379,859
7 Claims on foreign bank ( ECA Rating 3-6) -
3 Claims on for.eign bank incorporated in SAARC r.egion operating with a buffer of 90.771
1% above their respective regulatory capital requirement
9 Claims on Domestic Corporate 37,625,223
10 | Claim on Foreign Corporate (ECA 0-1) -
11 | Claim on Foreign Corporate (ECA 7) -
12 | Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio (not overdue) 8,555,089
13 | Claims secured by residential properties 3,048,227
14 | Claims secured by residential properties (overdue) 29,494
15 | Claims Secured by Commercial Real Estate 1,515,910
16 | Past due claims(except for claim secured by residential properties) 208,323
17 High Risk Claims 9,451,708
13 Investments in equity and other capital instruments of institutions listed in the stock 172700
exchange

19 | Investment in Equity of Institution not listed in the Stock Exchange 317,260
20 | Staff Loan secured by residential property 156,111
21 | Cash in transit and other cash items in the process of collection -
22 | Other Assets 4,531,971
23 Off Balance Sheet Items 6,726,696
Total 73,058,635

jet | gfs UfIdEeT 2003/©8 I Q0O8/©Y



oaTH e forfaids

<&'<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
HaABl A, HABT AT

. Total Risk Weighted Exposure calculation table:

Rs. in '000

Particulars Amount
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 78,296,737
Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital) (CET1+AT1) 9,770,377
Total Capital Fund 10,462,927
Total Core Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures % 12.48
Total Capital Fund to Total Risk Weighted Exposures % 13.36

Details of Non-Performing Assets
. Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net): Rs. in '000

Non-Performing Assets Amount Loan Loss Provision Net NPL
Restructured/Rescheduled 46,580 5,822 40,757
Sub-Standard 119,690 29,923 89,768
Doubtful 70,909 35,454 35,454
Loss 420,004 420,004 -
Total 657,183 491,203 165,980

ii.

5.3.

Compliance with external requirement

The Bank is required to comply with the minimum Capital Adequacy Requirements of Nepal Rastra Bank. For the
year ended 16 July 2018, such Capital Adequacy Requirement was set at 11% of Total Risk Weighted Exposures of
the Bank.

During the year ended 16 July 2018, the Bank has complied with such minimum Capital Adequacy Requirements.
Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial Assets

NAS 39 requires financial assets to be classified in one of the following categories:

. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
. Available-for-sale financial assets

. Loans and receivables

. Held to maturity investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have two sub-categories:

. Financial asset that is designated on initial recognition as one to be measured at fair value with fair value
changes in profit or loss.

. Held for trading
Financial Liabilities

NAS 39 recognizes two classes of financial liabilities:
. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

. Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method
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The category of financial liability at fair value through profit or loss has two sub-categories:

. Financial liability that is designated by the entity as a liability at fair value through profit or loss upon initial

recognition
° Held for trading
5.4. Operating Segment information

1.  General Information
a. Factors used to identify the Bank's reportable segments

The Bank has identified the key segments of business on the basis of nature of banking operations. It helps the
management to assess the performance of the business segments. The business segments identified are Banking

(including loans, deposits and trade operations), Cards, Remittance and Treasury.

b. Types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues

(a) | Remittance Services

1 | Remittance fee and commission

2 | Other remit related fees and commission

(b) | Card Business

Interchange Income (VISA/NIBL)

Credit Card

Debit Card

ATM Fees

Merchant Settlement Fees and commission

1
2
3
4 | Prepaid Card
5
6
7

Other Fees and Commission

(¢) | Treasury

Interest Income from placements and investments

Purchase and Sale of shares/bonds and other financial instruments

Bullion Trading Income

Forex Gain

Rebate from Nostro Banks

1
2
3
4 | Dividend Income on Investments
5
6
7

Other Fees and Commission income

(d) | Banking

1 | Income from Loan Products

2 | Income from Bills Purchase and Discounting
3 | Income from issuance of Letter of Credit

4 | Income from issuance of Bank Guarantee

5 | Income from Document Collection

7 | Income from Bancassurance

8 | Profit on sale of assets

9 | Profit on sale of Non Banking Assets

10 | Income from other Banking Services
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2074-75
In '000
. Remitt T
Particulars emt .ance C:?rd rea.sury . Total
Services Business Business Banking
Revenue from external cus-
(a) | tomers 24,216 61,981 549,930 6,813,815 7,449,942
(b) | Intersegment revenues - - - - -
(c¢) | Net Revenue 24,216 61,981 549,930 6,813,815 7,449,942
(d) | Interest Revenue - 1,523 348 6,802,140 6,804,011
(e) | Interest Expense - - 20,182 4,751,151 4,771,333
(f) | Net interest revenue (b) - 1,523 (19,833) 2,050,989 2,032,678
(g) | Depreciation and Amortization 101 852 51 78,211 79,214
(h) | Segment profit/(loss) 7,244 8,517 511,522 830,085 1,357,368
Entity's interest in the profit or
loss of associates accounted
(1) | for using equity method -
(j) | Other material non-cash items: -
(k) | Impairment of assets - (1,419) - (30,527) (31,946)
(1) | Segment assets 2,242 26,768 9,867,290 | 72,827,250 82,723,551
(m) | Segment liabilities 2,242 26,768 9,867,290 | 72,827,250 82,723,551
Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
a. Basis of Accounting
All transactions between the reportable segments are accounted as separate unit and allocation is based upon
use of resources and output derived from the reportable segments.
b. Nature of differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' profits or losses
and the Bank's profit or loss before income tax
There is no difference between the measurement of the reportable segments' profit and the Bank's profit before
income tax.
c. Nature of differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' assets and the
Bank's asset
There is no difference between the measurement of the reportable segments' assets and the Bank's asset.
d. Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine
reported segment profit or loss and the effect, if any
No changes are made in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment profit or loss from prior
periods.
e. Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments

No asymmetrical allocations are made to reportable segments.
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4. Reconciliations

(a) Revenue
2074-75 2073-74
Total revenues for reportable segments 7,449,942,025.32 4,162,147,560.05
Other revenues - -
Elimination of intersegment revenues - -
Entity's revenues 7,449,942,025.32 4,162,147,560.05
(b) Profit or loss
2074-75 2073-74
Total profit or loss for reportable segments 1,357,367,777 1,151,231,923
Other profit or loss - -
Elimination of intersegment profits - -
Unallocated amounts: - -
Profit before income tax 1,357,367,777 1,151,231,923
(©) Assets
2074-75 2073-74
Total assets for reportable segments 82,723,550,667 61,728,631,749
Other assets - -
Unallocated amounts - -
Entity's assets 82,723,550,667 61,728,631,749
(d) | Liabilities
2074-75 2073-74
Total liabilities for reportable segments 82,723,550,667 61,728,631,749
Other liabilities - -
Unallocated liabilities - -
Entity's liabilities 82,723,550,667 61,728,631,749
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S. No. | Particular 2074-75 2073-74
(a) | Remittance Services 24,215,547.99 22,508,951.56
1 Remittance fee and commission 24.215,547.99 22,508,951.56
2 Other fees and commission
(b) | Card Business 61,981,352.21 62,009,801.71
1 Interchange Income (VISA/CUP/NEPS) 10,928,977.85 8,752,561.69
2 Credit Card 2,859,105.98 539,237.48
3 Debit Card 6,810,288.02 7,631,669.50
4 Prepaid Card 112,750.00 298,000.00
5 ATM Fees 7,552,518.20 750,502.40
6 Merchant Settlement Fees and commission 759,825.25 -
7 Other Fees and Commission 32,957,886.91 44,037,830.64
(¢) | Treasury 549,930,134.94 283,420,925.65
1 Interest Income from placements and investments 348,456,801.43 163,565,492.98
Purchase and Sale of shares/bonds and other financial 15,213,178.30 }
2 instruments
3 Bullion Trading Income 11,136,810.00 9,408,305.00
4 Dividend Income on Investments 5,224,043.62 1,857,697.25
5 Forex Gain 166,458,789.59 106,448,890.71
6 Rebate from Nostro Banks 3,440,512.00 2,140,539.71
7 Other Fees and Commission income
(d) |Banking 6,813,814,990.18 3,794,207,881.13
1 Income from Loan Products 6,455,554,579.13 3,573,313,834.03
2 Income from Bills Purchase and Discounting 37,867.71 115,526.86
3 Income from issuance of Letter of Credit 45,713,833.38 24,056,504.40
4 Income from issuance of Bank Guarantee 52,740,251.56 25,685,338.78
5 Income from Document Collection 944,599.50 1,186,129.60
6 Income from Bancassurance 4,792,953.69 -
8 Profit on sale of assets 5,843,135.57 100,200.87
9 Profit on sale of Non Banking Assets 10,024,429.30 11,670,050.25
10 Income from other Banking Services 238,163,340.34 158,080,296.34
Total Revenue 7,449,942,025.32 4,162,147,560.05
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6. Information about geographical areas (Total Operating Income)

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

2074-75 2073-74

(a) Domestic 2,651,286,325 1,839,331,539
Province 1 898,266,418 598,216,087

Province 2 322,915,422 219,897,923

Province 3 673,624,062 454,953,856

Province 4 164,060,115 149,714,303

Province 5 364,071,978 256,909,349

Province 6 117,477,006 102,815,965

Province 7 110,871,321 56,824,053

(b) Foreign - -
Total 2,651,286,325 1,839,331,539

Information about major customers

None of the external customer of the Bank individually contributes 10% or more to the Bank's revenue as at Asadh
32,2075 as well as Asadh 31, 2074.

Share options and share based payment

A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank receives goods or services either as consideration for its
equity instruments or by incurring liabilities for amounts based on the price of the entity's shares or other equity
instruments of the entity.

The bank has not entered into any share option or share based payment contract as of Asadh 32, 2075.
Contingent liabilities and commitment
Contingent Liabilities:

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued, such as for performance
bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit as part of the Bank's transaction banking business for which an obligation to
make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial statements as contingent
liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of customers to
customs, for bids or offers.

Commitments:

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form
of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not made
payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statement as commitments.

Please refer Note No. 4.28 (including Note No. 4.28.1- 4.28.5) for detail of contingent liabilities and commitments
as at Asadh 32, 2075 and Asadh 31, 2074.

Related parties disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions and include major shareholders, subsidiary
companies, associates, retirement funds, directors and key management personnel and their close family members.
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Banking transactions with the related parties are executed substantially on the same terms, including mark-up rates
and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with unrelated parties and do not involve
more than a normal risk.

a) Subsidiary

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiary, Kumari Capital Limited, meet the definition of related party as
defined under NAS-24 “Related Party Disclosures".

Transactions during the year 2074-75 (Rs.) | 2073-74 (Rs.) | 2072-73 (Rs.)
E%E;yr ih(lj‘;)sit:;eilt(}?y Kumari Bank Limited on 200,000,000.00 ] ]
E?:Iln];r?g);lltli lﬁf;(lid by Kumari Capital Limited at 200,000,000.00 ] ]
s Bank Lid reimbursable 285,000.00 : _

Final approval from SEBON is under process of Kumari Capital Limited
b) Associates

Transactions between the Bank and its associates also meet the definition of related parties. The Bank considers an
investee as its associate if the Bank can exercise significant influence in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but does not have control or joint control of those policies.

The Bank does not exercise significant influence in the financial and operating policy decisions of any of its investees
as at and Asadh 32, 2075 and Asadh 31, 2074.

The Bank has appointed its employee as a director in case of following investees but do not exercise significant
influence in their financial and operating policy decisions:

Transactions during the year 2074-75 2073-74 2072-73
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

National Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Investment in shares 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000

Shareholding % 20% 20% 20%

¢) Directors and other Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Key Management Personnel and their immediate family members are also considered to be related parties for
disclosure purpose as per NAS-24 “Related Party Disclosures".

As per Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NAS 24) “Related Party Disclosures", Key Management Personnel are
those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. The Bank
considers the members of its Board, Chief Executive Officer and all managerial level executives as Key Management
Personnel (KMP) of the Bank.
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Following is a list of Board of Directors and CEO bearing office at Asadh 32, 2075.

Mr. Santosh Kumar Lama Chairman
Dr. Shobha Kant Dhakal Director
Mr. Uttam P. Bhattarai Director
Mr. Naresh Dugar Director
Mr. Krishna Prasad Gyawali Director
Mr. Puna Ram Bhandari Director
Er. Binod Dawadi Director

Mr. Surender Bhandari

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Surender Bhandari has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 16 July 2017.

Compensation to the members of the Board

All members of the Board are non-executive directors and no executive compensation is paid to the directors. Specific

non-executive allowances paid to directors are as under:

Board Meeting fees Rs. 3,440,000

Other benefits Rs. 1,415,144

These allowances and benefits are approved by the Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

Compensation to Chief Executive Officer of the Bank

In '000
. Total Compensation (Rs.)

Nature of Compensation

2074-75 2073-74
Short-term employee benefits 12,522 5,224
Employee Bonus - 2,388
Post employee benefits - 602
Festival Allowances and payment against annual leave 1,758 720
Other Allowances 55 968
Total 14,335 9,902

Compensation to Senior Management Personnel of the Bank
In '000

Nature of Compensation Total Compensation (Rs.)

2074-75 2073-74
Short-term employee benefits 31,754 4,591
Employee Bonus 5,593 1,640
Post employee benefits 1,155 -
Festival Allowances and payment against annual leave 3,444 562
Other Allowances 1,454 523
Total 43,400 7,316

Senior Management Personnel indicates staffs of AGM level and above
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d) Loans and deposits of Directors and other Key Managerial Personnel (KMP); along with Close

Family Members (CFMs) In '000
Particular 2074-75 2073-74
Loans and Receivables 34,020 7,277
Credit Cards 229 18
Deposits 44,341 46,679

The above figures indicate the details of directors and staffs of AGM level and above and identified close family
members of KMPs.

Merger and acquisition

The Bank had acquired erstwhile Kasthamandap Development Bank Limited, Paschimanchal Finance Company
Limited, Mahakali Bikas Bank Limited and Kakre Bihar Bikas Bank Limited and had started joint operation from 16%
Asadh 2074. The merger had been accounted for using “Interest Pooling Method".

The acquisition had been effected on the comparative period (i.e. on the FY 2073-74) on 15* of Asadh 2074 under
interest pooling method, whereby no goodwill is calculated. The Bank has accordingly restated:

. the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities recognized at the date of acquisition or merger

The comparative period profitability reflects, position of the Kumari Bank Limited before acquisition along with 15
days profitability after acquisition, as all the profit of the acquired institutions are transferred to the reserve of the bank.

Apart from the acquisition mentioned above, the Bank has not entered into any merger or acquisition activity.
Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities

Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NAS 24) “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities", is applicable when an entity
has interest in any of the following:

. Subsidiaries

. Joint arrangements (joint operations or joint ventures)
. Associates

. Unconsolidated structured entities

The Bank has already disclosed its interests in subsidiaries and associates in 5.7. Related parties' disclosures. The
Bank does not have any interest in any form of joint arrangements or unconsolidated structured entities as on Asadh
32,2075 as well as Asadh 31, 2074.

5.10. Events after reporting period

Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the reporting date and
the date the Financial Statements are authorized for issue.

The Bank follows NAS-10 “Events after the Reporting Period" to account for and report the events that have occurred
after the reporting period.

As per NRB Directive 12(6), where a licensed institution wishes to provide a loan to the family members of any black-
listed individual, it may provide accordingly to the decision of the Board of Directors. However, provision on such
loan shall be provided double of the required amount under the existing arrangement and provision in excess of one
hundred percent shall not be necessary.

Such item is noticed after statutory audit in the case of Cimex Trading Pvt Ltd, for which additional provision of NPR.
407,365.96 is provided as per the stated provision of the NRB. Along with additional provision of NPR. 2,10,95,059.74
is provided after review from NRB supervision.
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5.11 Disclosure effect of transition from previous GAAP to NFRSs
The bank has prepared the opening Statement of Financial Position as per NFRS as of 1st Shrawan, 2073 (16th
July 2016) (the transition date) by:

a recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS,

b reclassifying items from previous GAAP to NFRS as required under NFRS,

c not recognizing items of assets and liabilities which are not permitted by NFRS and

d applying NFRS in measurement of recognized assets and liabilities

5.11.1. Reconciliation of equity

As at As at
01.04.2073 31.03.2074
Explanatory N (End of last period
Note (Date of Transition) pres.ented under
previous GAAP)

Total equity under Previous GAAP 4,063,380,822 8,080,236,593

Adjustments under NFRSs:
Impairment on loan and advances 1 - -
Fair value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan - -
Lease accounting - -
Measurement of investment securities at fair value 2 2,025,406 12,708,237
Revaluation of property & equipment - -
Recognition of investment property 3 126,378,439 112,128,516
Amortisation of debt securities issued - -
Deferred tax 4 (90,521,883) (73,773,559)
Defined benefit obligation of employees (83,030,770) (142,994,456)
Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain - -
Interest income 6 141,107,028 274,395,239
Other

-Investment Provision Reversal/(Charged) 7 - 669,208
Total Adjustment to equity 95,958,220 183,133,185
Total Equity under NFRSs 4,159,339,042 8,263,369,778
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Explanatory note:

1. Impairment on loan and advances

Loans and advances are assessed individually and collectively as per incured loss model which is compared with the loss
provision prescribed by NRB directive no. 2. As per recent Carve Outs,Higher of the loss as per incurred loss model and NRB
directive is considered for impairment.

2.Measurement of investment securities at fair value

Investments were measured at cost less diminution in value. Under NFRS, these financial assets have been classified as
financials investment held for sale(FVTOCI). On the date of transition to NFRS, these financial assets have been measured
at their fair value which is higher than the cost as per previous GAAP, resulting in an increase in the carrying amount as
explained in the table below. These changes have been recongnised under Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Particulars (16-Jul-2016) (15-Jul-2017)
Increase in carrying amount due to fair value 2,893,437.00 18,154,625
Deferred tax impact on the increased amount 868,031.10 5,446,387
Net Increase in Equity 2,025,405.90 12,708,237.15

3.Investment Properties/Non Banking Asset

Under previous GAAP, Non Banking Assets (NBA) were recognised as per Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank and 100%
provision were made. Under NFRS, these NBA have been classified as Non Current Assets held for sale and measured at lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell . On the date of transition to NFRS, provision as per the Directives of
NRB had been reversed, resulting in an increase in the carrying amount as explained in the table below.

Particulars (16-Jul-2016) (15-Jul-2017)
Increase in carrying amount due to reversal of provision on NBA 126,378,439.29 112,128,515.79
Net increament in total equity 126,378,439.29 112,128,515.79

4. Deferred tax

Deferred tax are mainly created due to accrual interest income booking , reversal of loan loss provision, reversal of
investment,Premium amortization of Bonds and acturial valution impact of defined benefit obligation. Below are the imapct
on equities as a result of NFRS Implementaion.

Particulars (16-Jul-2016) (15-Jul-2017)

Reversal of DTA as per GAAP (2,586,412.39) (31,168,451.74)
DTL created as per NFRS 87,935,470.66 42,605,107.39
Net decrease in Equity (90,521,883.05) (73,773,559.13)
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5. Defined benefit obligation of employees

As per the Acturial Valuation of defined benfit obligations mainly -gratuity and leave encashment , the increase or decrease in
liability has been incorporated. The net recognized amount, is the sum of cumulative excess of contributions to the plan over
Net Annual Expense and other plan-related charges to Income due either to business combination or accelerated recognition
pursuant to NAS 19.Below is the imapct of same.

Particulars (16-Jul-2016) (15-Jul-2017)
Net increase( decrease) in gratuity fund 35,188,687.50 67,995,473.75
Net increase( decrease) in leave encashment fund 47,842,082.84 74,998,982.35
Net decrease in Equity 83,030,770.34 142,994,456.10

6. Interest income

NRB Directives requires banks to book their income on accrual basis, except for interest receivables on loan and advances
which are accounted for on cash basis. Interest income from loan and advances are transferred to suspense account until the
amounts is realized. NFRS requires that incomes on loans are accounted for on an effective interest-rate basis and recognised
under accrual basis.Below is the imapct of acccural accounting in equity.

Particulars (16-Jul-2016) (15-Jul-2017)
Accrual interest income booking of loans and advances 141,107,028.49 274,395,238.85
Net Increase in Equity 141,107,028.49 274,395,238.85
7. Other

Below are the necessary adjustment required of GAAPs financial statements to be in par with NFRS financial statements .

Particulars (16-Jul-2016) (15-Jul-2017)
a) Reversal of investment provision - 669,208
Net Increase in Equity - 669,208
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5.11.2. Reconciliation of profit or loss

Previous GAAP

Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest income

Impairment of loan and advances

Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan

Defined benefit obligation of employee
Operating lease expense

Amortisation expense of debt securities
Other operating income

Interest expense

Depreciation & Amortisation

Deferred tax income/Expense

Others

-Investment provision charged/Reversal
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-Provision of Investment Properties/non Banking Assets Reversal

Total Adjustment to profit or loss
Profit or loss under NFRSs
Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs
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For the year ended
31.03.2074

(the latest period present-
ed under previous GAAP)

Profit/(Loss) for the year
660,741,688

140,228,041
(6,939,831)
19,906,562

(7,212,750)

669,208
(14,249,923)
132,401,307
793,142,994
(45,226,342)
747,916,652
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* Explanatory note
1 Interest income
Accrual Interest income accounting of loans and advances

Accrual Interest income accounting of staff loans

2.Employees benefit amortisation under staff loan

Finance expense under NFRS/Employee benefit amortization

3 Defined benefit obligation of employee
Decrease in gratuity expense due to acturial valuation
Decrease in leave encashment expense due to acturial valuation

Additional Expenses charged as per actuary

4 Deferred tax expense

Increase in loan loss provision due to booking of AIR
Provision for leave encashment

Provision for Gratuity

Property plant and equipment

Adjustment for merger

Actuarial gain or loss on Gratuity

Reversal of Deferred tax under Gaap

Deferred Tax expenses as per NFRS

5 Others’
A) Investment provision reversal

Reversal of investement provision required

B) Reversal of Provision of Investment Properties (NBA)

Provision of Investment Properties (NBA) in 2072/73
Provision of Investment Properties (NBA) in 2073/74
Increase in Provision of NBA

6 Other comprehensive income

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items
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133,288,210

6,939,831
140,228,041

(6,939,831)

10,270,200
(58,985,797)

68,622,159
19,906,562

(39,986,463)
13,429,365
(10,264,109)
9,052,565
73,099,006
(23,961,074)
(28,582,039)
(7,212,750)

669,208

126,378,439
112,128,516

(14,249,923)

15,261,188
(79,870,248)

19,382,718
(45,226,342)
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5.11.3. Explanatory Note on Effect of NFRSs adoption for the statement of financial
position

3.1 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances as per GAAP

Accrued Interest

Remeasurement of Staff Loan

Difference in GAAP and NFRS

Balance as per NFRS

3.2 Investment Securities

Investment in securities as per GAAP

Change in Fair Value as per NFRS

Difference

Balance as per NFRS

3.3 Investment Properties

Gross Investment Properties (NBA) as per GAAP
Less: Provision for NBA

Net Investment Properties as per GAAP

Reversal of Provision for Investment Properties (NBA)
3.4 Deferred Tax

Deferred Asset/(Liabilities)Tax as per GAAP
Reversal of Deferred Tax assets

Closing Deferred Asset/(Liabilities)Tax as per NFRS

As at 01.04.2073
(Date of Transition)

29,033,426,034
141,107,028
(25,062,947)
116,044,081
29,149,470,116

3,809,849,584
2,893,437.00
2,893,437
3,812,743,021

180,540,628
180,540,628

180,540,628

2,586,412
(2,586,412)

As per previous GAAP, deferred tax assets were created, which was reversed and deferred tax liability was shown.

3.5 Other assets
Other Asset as per GAAP
Staff Loan amortization
Total Other Assets as per NFRS
3.6 Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred Asset/(Liabilities)Tax as per GAAP
Deferred Asset/(Liabilities)Tax as per NFRS
Increase in Fair Value
NBA provision reversal
Increase in loan due to booking of AIR
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Leave Encashment
Adjustment for merger
Deferred tax asset Reversal under NFRS
Closing Deferred Asset/(Liabilities)Tax as per NFRS Equity
3.7 Other liabilities
Other Liabilities as per GAAP
Additional Provision of Gratuity
Additional Provision of Leave
Total liabilities as per NFRS
3.8 Retained earnings
Opening retained earning as per GAAP
Defined Benefit Obligation
AIR of Loan
Provision reversal of Investment Property
Reversal of Provision on Investment
Leave Encashment Actuarial Gain/Loss
Deferred Tax
Total
3.9 Reserve
Opening Reserve as per GAAP
Fair Value Reserve
Total
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44,177,785
25,062,947
69,240,732

(868,031.10)
(54,162,188.27)
(42,332,108.55)

10,556,606.25
14,352,624.85
(73,099,006.00)
2,586,412.39

(142,965,690.43)

402,126,784
35,188,688
47,842,083

485,157,555

619,376,254
(83,030,770.34)
141,107,028
126,378,439

(90,521,883)
713,309,068

744,838,036
2,025,406
746,863,442

As at 31.03.2074
(End of last period presented under
previous GAAP)

43,313,888,522
274,395,239
(31,264,088)
243,131,151
43,557,019,673

4,710,000,666
18,823,833
18,823,833
4,728,824,498

160,183,594
(160,183,594)

160,183,594

31,168,452
(31,168,452)

223,554,014
31,264,088
254,818,102

(5,446,387.35)
(48,055,078.20)
(82,318,571.66)
(13,954,682.17)

22,499,694.70

31,168,451.74
(96,106,572.93)

867,547,850
67,995,474
74,998,982

1,010,542,306

984,174,344
(67,995,474)
274,395,239
112,128,516

669,208
(74,998,982)
(73,773,559)

1,154,599,291

1,126,566,426
12,708,237
1,139,274,663



oaTH e forfaids

<&'<®> KUMARI BANK LIMITED
HaABl A, HABT AT

5.11.4. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31.03.2074
(the latest period presented under previous GAAP)

. Explanatory . Effect of Transition to Amount as per
Particulars Note Previous GAAP NFRSs NFRSs
Interest income EN 3,596,651,286 140,228,041 3,736,879,327

Interest expense

(2,299,277,448)

(2,299,277,448)

Net interest income 1,297,373,838 140,228,041 1,437,601,879
Fee and commission income 278,880,211 - 278,880,211
Fee and commission expense (23,538,573) - (23,538,573)
Net fee and commission income 255,341,638 - 255,341,638

Net interest, fee and commission income

Net trading income

Other operating income

Total operating income

1,552,715,476

85,261,574
61,126,449

1,699,103,498

140,228,041

140,228,041

1,692,943,517

85,261,574
61,126,449

1,839,331,539

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses EN 75,608,852 (19,687,825) 56,011,027
Net operating income 1,774,802,350 120,540,216 1,895,342,566
Operating expense

Personnel expenses EN (462,974,741) (55,655,428) (518,630,168)
Other operating expenses (248,154,532) - (248,154,532)
Depreciation & Amortisation (45,947,101) - (45,947,101)
Operating Profit 1,017,725,976 64,884,788 1,082,610,764
Non operating income EN - 68,622,159 68,622,159
Non operating expense - - -
Profit before income tax 1,017,725,976 133,506,947 1,151,232,923
Income tax expense

Current Tax (312,467,322) - (312,467,322)
Deferred Tax EN (44,516,966) (1,105,640) (45,622,607)
Profit for the year 660,741,688 132,401,307 793,142,994
Other comprehensive income EN - (45,226,342) (45,226,342)
Total Comprehensive Income 660,741,688 87,174,965 747,916,652

* Explanatory note is required for each line item presented in adjustment on which transition effect has been arisen
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5.11.5. Effect of NFRSs adoption for statement of cash flows

. Explanatory
Particulars Note*
Net cash flows from operating activities EN
Net cash flows from investing activities EN
Net cash flows from financing activities EN
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period EN

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period

Explanatory Note :

For the year ended 31.03.2074
(the latest period presented under previous GAAP)

Previous GAAP

948,178,362
(1,047,322,662)
3,350,114,085
3,256,969,784

4,511,195,632
7,768,165,416

Effect of Transition
to NFRSs

(2,216,746,159)
112,155,824
(45,226,343)
(2,149,816,678)

(883,594,532)
(3,033,411,210)

Amount as per
NFRSs

(1,268,567,797)
(935,166,838)
3,310,887,741

1,107,153,107

3,627,601,100

4,734,754,206

The changes in net cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities is due to regrouping and recalssification of
1 items required under NFRS which is different from regulatory GAAPs financial statements.

The changes in cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period is due to regrouping and recalssification of items i.e statutory balance with NRB,
2 required under NFRS which is different from regulatory GAAPs financial statements.
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5.12. Availment of Carve-outs notified by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal has notified 7 Carve-outs in NFRS which allows alternative treatment.
Out of the 7 Carve-outs, the Bank has availed following Carve-outs while preparing its financial statements for FY
2074/75:

a) Carve-Out: 2 - NAS 17: Lease (Operating lease in the financial statements of Lessees)

b) Carve-Out: 5 - NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Incurred Loss Model to measure the
Impairment Loss on Loan and Advances)

c) Carve-Out: 6 - NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Impracticability to determine
transaction cost of all previous years which is the part of effective interest rate)

d) Carve-Out: 7 - NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Impracticability to determine
interest income on amortized cost)

a)

b)

ii.

Carve-Out : 2 - NAS 17: Lease (Operating lease in the financial statements of Lessees)

As per NAS-17, lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user's
benefit.

The Carve-out allows lessees to recognize lease payments as an expense on a straight line basis over the term
unless either:

Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit even if the
payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary because of factors
other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

The Bank has availed Carve-out mentioned in Pt. a (i) mentioned above and has amortized lease payments over
the period as per the lease agreements.

Carve-Out : 5 - NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Incurred Loss
Model to measure the Impairment Loss on Loan and Advances)

As per NAS-39, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such
evidence exists, the entity shall apply paragraph 63 to determine the amount of any impairment loss.

The Carve-out requires Banks to measure impairment loss on loans and advances as the higher amount derived
as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph
63 of NAS-39; and shall apply paragraph 63 to measure the impairment loss on financial assets and other assets
other than loan and advances. The Bank shall disclose the impairment loss as per the Carve-out and the amount
of impairment loss determined as per paragraph 63.
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The Bank has availed the Carve-out and has accordingly recognized impairment loss on loans and advances as
the higher amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount
determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS-39. The detail of impairment loss on loans and advances are as follows:

Amount (Rs.)

Particular 2072/73 2073/74 2074/75

Total Loan loss provision as per norms prescribed
by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB Directive No. 2)

Total Impairment as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39 137,553,406 288,879,350 337,030,710

624,939,786 | 1,107,121,361 |  1,139,067,544

As, Loan loss provision as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank is higher in all 3 years, impairment loss
on loans and advances is made accordingly.

The Bank has classified total loan loss provision mentioned above into 2 categories viz. Individual Impairment
and Collective Impairment. The Bank has classified general loan loss provision as Collective Impairment and
specific loan loss provision as Individual Impairment.

Carve-out: 6- NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Impracticability
to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the part of effective interest rate)

As per NAS-39, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses while calculating
the effective interest rate. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see NAS 18 — Revenue)

The Carve-out states that the effective interest rate calculation shall include all fees and points paid or received,
unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably.

The Bank has availed this Carve-out and has not considered all fees and points paid or received which are
impracticable to measure reliably while determining effective interest rate.

Carve-Out:7-NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Impracticability
to determine interest income on amortized cost)

As per NAS-39, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result
of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

The Carve-out states that once a financial asset or group of similar financial assets has been written down as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Interest income shall be calculated by
applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is
written off either partially or fully.

The Bank has availed this Carve-out and has calculated interest income on gross carrying amount of financial
assets rather than calculating the interest income on amortized cost.

5.13.Dividend and Bonus

Bank's BOD meeting held on 9 January 2019 has decided to propose Rs. 60,88,88,572 (8.5% of the existing capital of
Rs. 7,16,33,94,973) as stock dividend from the distributable reserves up to FY 2074/75.
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5.14.Unpaid Dividend

Out of total cash dividend proposed in FY 2066/67 & FY 2068/69 which were distributed in FY 2067/68 & FY
2069/70 respectively, cash dividend of NPR. 5,565,551.48 is still payable because shareholders have not yet collected
the dividend. Also, dividend payable amounting to NPR. 31,20,034.21 stands payable as of Asadh 2075 for the
payable of the acquisition institutions.

5.15 Provision for staff bonus

Provision for staff bonus has been provided at 10% of net profit before providing for income tax provision. This
provision has been made as per Bonus Act 2030.

5.16 General Reserve

20 percent of the profit after tax is transferred to General Reserves as per Section 44 of Banks and Financial Institutions
Act 2073. In FY 2074/75, the Bank has transferred Rs. 208,378,540 to the General Reserve Fund from the current
year's profit.

5.17 Exchange Fluctuation Fund

25 percent of the revaluations gain on foreign exchange is transferred to exchange fluctuation fund as per Section 45
of Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073. In FY 2074/75, the revaluation gain on foreign exchange amounts to Rs.
17,507,375. Therefore, the Bank has transferred Rs. 4,376,844 to Exchange Fluctuation Fund from the current year
profit. The balance in Exchange Fluctuation Fund stands at Rs. 39,685,586 as on Asadh 32, 2075.

5.18 Investment Adjustment Reserve

Investment adjustment reserve has been created on Investment classified as 'Available for Sale'. Total outstanding
investment adjustment reserve as at Balance Sheet date is Rs. 5,000,000. Investment adjustment reserve created up to
FY 2073/74 has been reversed in current year following provisions of Unified NRB Directives, 2075. The amount of
write back equals to Rs. 5,868,392,

In Rs.

Particular Cost Price Rs. % Reserve [nvestment
Adjustment Reserve

1. Investment in Shares
Credit Information Center Limited 1,330,000 Exemption by NRB -
Nepal Clearing House Limited 3,976,700 Exemption by NRB -
National Banking Training Institute 1,200,000 Exemption by NRB -
Kumari Capital Ltd 200,000,000 First Year of Investment -
Nepal Electronic Payment System Ltd 5,000,000 100% 5,000,000
Total Investment 211,506,700 5,000,000
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5.19 Interest Capitalization

Following are the loans, interest on which is capitalized to recognize income in accordance with NRB approval. These
loans are the project loans interest on which was capitalized for moratorium period. Detail of such loans and interest

recognized in FY 2074/75 is as follows —

Amount in NPR

SN Name of the client Type C;‘::zgsz:d NRaBl ZI;I::OV'
1 HIMALAYAN HYDROPOWER Term Loan 3,115,028.17 06/30/2074
2 CIVIL HYDROPOWER PVT. LTD Term Loan 21,801,624.93 03/07/2074
3 PASHUPATI ENVIRONMENTAL POWER CO. PVT LTD Term Loan 7,896,045.63 09/13/2073
4 SINGATI HYDRO ENERGY PVT LTD Term Loan 5,434,564.20 6/24/2075
5 BINDHYABASINI HYDROPOWER LTD Term Loan 5,464,646.58 03/29/2073
6 BINDHYABASINI HYDROPOWER LTD Term Loan 1,002,811.71 3/8/2074
7 UNIVERSAL POWER CO. LTD Term Loan 3,990,783.80 9/30/2074
8 SANIGAD HYDRO PVT LTD Term Loan 778,695.35 12/30/2074

Total 49,484,200.37
5.20 Other Reserves

Employee Related Reserve Fund

As per NRB circular, the Bank is required to expend at least 3% of total staff expenses of previous year 073/74 in
employees training and development. If the required amount could not be spent for the purpose, employees related
reserve fund should be created for the shortfall amount. As of Balance Sheet date, the Bank's Employee Related

Reserve Fund stands at Rs 1,755,171.

Partucular Amount (Rs.)
Opening balance as on 1*Shrawan 2074 (A) 4,387,678
3% of Total Employee expenses for FY 2073/74 (B) 10,836,064
Actual Expense incurred in Employee training and development in FY 2074/75 (C) 13,468,571
Reserve to be created for shortfall amount or reduced for excess (D=B-C) (2,632,5006)
Closing balance as on 32"Asadh 2075 (A+D) 1,755,171

CSR Reserves

As per NRB circular, the Bank has to transfer 1% of current year's profit to CSR fund. The Bank has transferred Rs
10,418,927 to CSR Fund from net profit of FY 074/75. As of Balance Sheet date, the Bank's CSR fund stands at Rs

15,960,683.
Partucular Amount (Rs.)
Opening balance as on 1*Shrawan 2074 (A) 6,751,877
1% of Net profit for FY 2074/75 to be transferred to CSR Fund (B) 10,418,927
CSR expenses incurred out of CSR Fund in FY 2074-75 (C) 1,210,121
Closing balance as on 32"Asadh 2075 (A+B-C) 15,960,683
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Capital Adjustment Reserve

Interest income recognized by capitalizing interest income for the loans provided under National Priority after
approval for such capitalization from Nepal Rastra Bank. The total capital adjustment reserve created in the FY 2073-
74 is carried forward in the current year, while no addition to the capital adjustment reserve is required to be created
as per NRB directive.

5.21 Summary of Loans and Advances Disbursed, Recovered and Principal & Interest Written-
off (except for Staff Loans and advances and interest accrued)

The loan and advances disbursed, recovered and written off during the year is given below:

(Rs in million)
Partucular Amount
Opening Loans and Advances 45,195.17
Loans and Advances disbursed during the year 84,828.08
Loans and Advances recovered during the year 67,282.28
Loans and Advances written off during the year 0.00
Closing Loans and Advances 62,740.97
Interest written off 0.00
5.22 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread

Partucular Rate (%)
Average Rate of return from loans and advances & investments 11.61
Average Rate of interest on deposits & borrowings 8.49
Net Spread 3.12

5.23 Summary of Concentration of exposure

No balance sheet and off balance sheet transaction have been highly concentrated to a single person, firm, organization
or to a particular sector. Detail of highest exposure to a single person or organization is as follows:

NPR In Million
Maximum concentration to a single customer
Partucular Total Exposure
Amount %
Loans & Advances 62,740.97 1,593.30 2.54
Deposits 69,651.22 2,052.62 2.95
Off Balance Sheet Items 9,923.46 559.21 5.64
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5.24 Summary of Changes in deposit during the year

Growth in deposits during the year is given below:

NPR In Million
Partucular This Year (Rs.) Last Year (Rs) Changes in amount
1) Current Deposit 3,198 1,796 1,402
a) Local Currency 3,153 1,740 1,413
b) Foreign Currency 44 56 (11)
2) Saving Deposit 16,383 13,393 2,990
a) Local Currency 16,277 13,265 3,013
b) Foreign Currency 106 128 (22)
3) Fixed Deposit 32,551 28,223 4,329
a) Local Currency 31,925 27,495 4,430
b) Foreign Currency 626 728 (101)
4) Call Deposit 17,285 8,243 9,042
a) Local Currency 17,018 7,148 9,870
b) Foreign Currency 267 1,095 (828)
5) Margin Deposit 234 383 (149)
a) Local Currency 234 383 (149)
b) Foreign Currency - - -
Total Deposit 69,651 52,037 17,614
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5.25 Classification of Assets and Liabilities based on Maturity PR In Million
SN. | Partucular 1-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 | More than Total
days days days days 1 year
Assets

1 | Cash Balance 2,034 - - - - 2,034
2 | Balance with Banks & FIs 6,782 - - - - 6,782
3 |Investment in Foreign Banks 887 219 - - - 1,107
4 | Call Money 121 - - - - 121
5 | Government Securities 1,626 1,564 261 - 5,050 8,501
6 |Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds - - - - - -
7 | Inter Bank & FI Lending 33 - - - - 33
8 |Loans & Advances 17,525 10,240 6,930 5,183 22,862| 62,741
9 | Interest Receivable 335 16 4 - 63 418
10 |Reverse Repo - - - - - -
11 | Acceptance Receivable - - - - - -
12 | Payments under S.No. 20,21 & 22 2,164 619 26 490 9,017 12316
13 | Others 733 244 244 244 985 2,451
Total (A) 32,241 12,902 7,465 5,918 37,977| 96,503

Liabilities
14 | Current Deposits 1,476 492 492 492 328 3,280
15 | Saving Deposits (including call) 8,417 1,683 1,683 1,683 20,201 | 33,668
16 |Fixed Deposits 7,164 7,002 5,352 8,432 4,602| 32,551
17 | Debentures/Bonds - - - - - -
18 |Borrowings 532 5 2 - - 539
Call/Short Notice - - - - - -
Inter-bank/Financial Institution 519 - - - - 519
Refinance 12 5 2 - - 19
Others - - - - - -
19 | Other Liabilities and Provisions 136 36 36 36 - 245
Sundry Creditors - - - - - -
Bills Payable 105 35 35 35 - 210
Interest Payable 27 - - - - 27
Provisions - - - - - -
Others 4 1 1 1 - 9
20 | Acceptance Liabilities 492 43 - - 91 626
21 |Irrevocable Loan Commitment 1,388 1,966 1,966 1,966 1,966 9,250
22 | Letter of Credit/Guarantee 2,744 1,213 375 1,978 2,988 9,298
23 |Repo - - - - - -
24 | Payable under s.no.11 - - - - - -
25 | Others 759 253 253 253 - 1,519
Total (B) 23,108 12,693 10,159 14,840 30,176| 90,976
Net Financial Assets (A-B) 9,133 209 (2,694) (8,923) 7,801 5,527
Cumulative Net Financial Assets 9,133 9,343 6,649 (2,274) 5,527 0)

TIMD UG 2003/ 08 I R008/GY | 13



parH e forfads

<&Y<®> KuMARI BANK LIMITED

Bl AP, HABT AT

5.26 Reconciliation Status

The Bank reconciles branches and other agency accounts regularly. The difference has been identified, reviewed and
reconciled and it has been or will be adjusted in due course of business.

Rs. in'000
e e . Statement . Statement
Reconciliation status Ledger Credit Credit Ledger Debit Debit
Less than 1 Month 234,276.52 51,944.02 99,329.91 2,917.53
More than 1 Month To Less than 3 4,725.04 332.82 10,100.46 76.77
Months
More than 3 Months To Less than 9 457497 ) ) 3110
Months
More than 9 Months 26.97 - - 3.66
Total 243,603.50 52,276.84 109,430.37 3,029.06
5.27 Details of Software Application (Intangible Assets)
Amount in NPR
Net Opening Net Additions during | Amortization during | Net Closing Balance
Balance the year the year
7,418,719 106,893,052 3,858,344 110,453,427

5.28 Capital Work in Progress (WIP)

Carrying amount of capital work-in-progress includes cost incurred for the soil testing work for building construction
site at Naxal. As of the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of WIP is NPR. 261,369.

5.29 Disclosure of Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity and Leave

2072-73 2073-74 2074-75
Partucular Gratuity Annual Leave Gratuity Annual Leave Gratuity Annual Leave
(Funded) Encashment (Funded) Encashment (Funded) Encashment

(Non Funded) (Non Funded) (Non Funded)
Change in Present Value
Obligations
PV of Obligation at : S| 146,908,822 | 62,063,331 | 248493,105| 106,827,880
beginning of the year
Interest Cost - -1 11,356,132.00 4,281,479 | 33,286,531 7,429,801
Current Service Cost 146,908,822 62,063,331 19,505,946 11,462,483 19,224,323 18,732,625
Benefit paid (11,592,880) | (14,047,348) (9,148,043) | (17,089,688) | (7,118,535) | (27,910,733)
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss 11,592,880 14,047,348 79,870,248 46,110,275 | (18,771,860) 4,600,012
Liability at the end of the year | 146,908,822 62,063,331 248,493,105 | 106,827,880 | 275,113,564 | 109,679,585
Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
Falr.Va!ue of Plan Asset at i i 110,147,774 -1 166,075,504 )
Beginning of the Year
Contribution by Employer 121,740,654 - 65,075,773 -| 57,959,812 -
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Benefit paid

(11,592,880)

(9,148,043)

(7,118,535)

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on
Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Asset at
End of the Year

110,147,774

166,075,504

216,916,781

Amount Recognized in
Statement of Financial Position

Present Value of Obligations
at Year End

146,908,822

62,063,331

248,493,105

106,827,880

275,113,564

109,679,585

Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year End

110,147,774

166,075,504

216,916,781

Funded Status

(36,761,048)

(62,063,331)

(82,417,601)

(106,827,880)

(58,196,783)

(109,679,585)

Unrecognized Actuarial
(Gain)/Loss at Year End

Unrecognized Past Service Cost

Net Asset/(Liability) Recognized
in Balance Sheet

(36,761,048)

(62,063,331)

(82,417,601)

(106,827,880)

(58,196,783)

(109,679,585)

5.30 Disclosure of Non Banking Assets

As at Asadh 32, 2075, Non Banking Assets assumed by Bank are as follows:

Name of Borrower/Party 1?(?;?;:[:::::2‘;5;: Total Non-Banking Assets Rs.
Opportunity Manpower Service 27-Jan-14 2,892,225.09
Sukunda Group 12-Feb-16 44,829,351.16
Sukunda Group 25-Feb-16 919,637.00
Bishnu Kumari Galla Bhandar 15-Jul-08 242.554.83
Rina Darji 22-Jan-17 837,270.00
Jite Kami 22-Jan-17 811,812.00
Jyam Maya B.K. 22-Jan-17 840,213.00
Uma Kumari Ghimire 22-Jan-17 820,283.00
Sita Nepali 22-Jan-17 839,711.00
Lul Bdr. B.K. 22-Jan-17 842,190.00
Sunil B.K. 22-Jan-17 837,509.00
Moti Kala Damai 22-Jan-17 841,806.00
Kamal Prasad Gyawali 30-Jan-17 1,751,787.00
Tul Prd. Gauchan 30-Jan-17 737,844.00
Bhim Bdr. Khasu 30-Jan-17 1,060,001.00
Suntala Khatri Chettri 30-Jan-17 1,048,480.00
Gita Balal 9-Mar-17 615,257.00
Ram Bdr. Bhujel 9-Mar-17 1,040,544.00
ChabiRaj Gurung 9-Mar-17 942,378.00
Gun Bdr. Bishwokarma 9-Mar-17 1,013,233.00
Sunil Kumar Shrestha 9-Mar-17 883,901.00
Nirmala Shrestha 9-Mar-17 956,138.00
Gyan Bdr. Damai 9-Mar-17 762,531.00
Aaiet Siri Tamang 9-Mar-17 657,603.00
Tika Bdr. Sunar 13-Apr-17 872,791.00
Dil Bdr. Nepali 13-Apr-17 790,522.00
Hum Bdr. Sarki 13-Apr-17 774,201.00
Mohan Bdr. Gurung 13-Apr-17 756,633.00
Poti Maya Gurung 13-Apr-17 783,816.00
Ram Krishna Kami 13-Apr-17 859,909.00
Sumitra Sunari Magar 13-Apr-17 680,235.00
Mitre Damai 13-Apr-17 824,395.00
Tau Maya Gurung 13-Apr-17 901,786.00
Bhobisara Chidi 13-Apr-17 691,073.00
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Padam Bdr. Malla 13-Apr-17 784,664.00
Deepak B.K. 13-Apr-17 814,572.00
Gyan Bahadur Gurung 21-Apr-17 787,845.00
MinaSara Ale 3-May-17 751,759.00
Fulmaya Pulami 3-May-17 889,608.00
Tilisara Gharti 3-May-17 925,684.00
Gitasara Darlami 3-May-17 745,537.00
Janga Bdr. Damai 3-May-17 691,001.00
Jamuna Sarki 3-May-17 1,022,564.00
Bhagwati Timilsina 3-May-17 920,123.00
Krishna Ratana 3-May-17 1,043,864.00
Fanimaya Darlami 3-May-17 1,142,127.00
Chowk Bdr. Rakhal 3-May-17 829.483.00
RamKrishna Kami 3-May-17 792,528.00
Sambhu Sunar 3-May-17 793,771.00
Laxmi Bishwokarma 3-May-17 793,771.00
Arjun Bdr. Bishwokarma 3-May-17 793,814.00
Dal Bdr. Kami 3-May-17 838,702.00
Krishna Bdr. B.K 3-May-17 793,771.00
Basanti Khadka 3-May-17 820,719.00
Gita Saru 3-May-17 728,194.00
Chabi Lal Sinjali 28-May-17 830,667.00
Sonu Tamang 28-May-17 830,348.00
Damaya Gurung 28-May-17 713,768.00
Umi Sara Singjali 15-Jun-17 614,883.00
Amita Gaha 15-Jun-17 676,950.00
Pratap Pariyar 15-Jun-17 636,328.00
KaliMaya Darji 15-Jun-17 532,219.00
Som Bdr. Sarki 15-Jun-17 757,340.00
Bir Bdr. Bishwokarma 15-Jun-17 758,314.00
Dhan Bdr. Kami 15-Jun-17 639,698.00
Uday Raj Tharu 15-Jun-17 531,206.00
Dhan Bdr. Bishwokarma 15-Jun-17 635,109.00
Maya Gharti 15-Jun-17 531,723.00
Khim Bdr. Sunar 15-Jun-17 529,701.00
Kashiram Gahatraj 15-Jun-17 529,709.00
Sita Sunar 15-Jun-17 533,826.00
Karan Bdr. Kami 15-Jun-17 533,834.00
Sushila Darji 15-Jun-17 531,912.00
Santa Lal Sunar 15-Jun-17 482,146.00
Khum Bdr. Sartunge 15-Jun-17 531,733.00
Kamal Bishwokarma 15-Jun-17 532,285.00
Jagat Bdr. Ale 15-Jun-17 532,089.00
Ram Bdr. B.K. 15-Jun-17 532,297.00
Min Bdr. Shreenet 15-Jun-17 532,627.00
Sita Pariyar 15-Jun-17 532,532.00
Fulmati Darji Bhane Fulmati 15-Jun-17 595,199.00
Man Kumari Rana 15-Jun-17 531,758.00
Bishnu Maya Gurung 15-Jun-17 594,308.00
Deepak Gahatraj 15-Jun-17 530,056.00
Chandra Bdr. Midhun 15-Jun-17 531,557.00
Tila Chaudhary 15-Jun-17 533,119.00
Shankar Nepali 15-Jun-17 531,912.00
Manakamana Diagnostic & Imaging Center 15-Oct-15 10,086,674.36
Raj kumar Tamang 5-Feb-16 5,890,530.10
Narayan Karki 28-Nov-16 4,000,000.00
Buddhi Hotel 1-Jun-17 1,807,084.41
Shree Ajima Grocery 27-Jun-17 51,840.00
Jeni Karmacharya 27-Jun-17 800,000.00
Total 134,171,002.95

5.31 Rounding off and Comparative Figures

Figures are rounded to nearest rupees. Previous year's figure has been regrouped or rearranged where necessary.
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Kumari Bank Ltd.
Comparison Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY 2074/75
Rs. in '000'
Statement of Financial Position As Ee: A As per Audited Variance
l;,. ial Fi ial R for Variance
Assets inancia Statement In amount In %
Statement
Cash and cash equivalent 3,353,911 3,780,644 426,733 12.72% | Due to Reclassification
Due from NRB and placements with BFIs 6,723,854 6,296,857 (426,998) -6.35% | Due to Reclassification
Loan and advances 62,940,072 62,375,510 (564,561) 20,909, | Reclassification of Staff Loan and
Advance
Investments Securities 9,036,376 8,802,904 (233,472) -2.58% | Due to Reclassification
Investment in subsidiaris and associates - 220,000 220,000 100.00% | Due to Reclassification
Property And Equipment 436,121 568,475 132,355 30.35% | Due to Reclassification
Goodwill and intangible assets 111,025 110,453 - 0.00%
Other assets 1,186,783 568,707 (618,076) -52.08% | Due to Reclassification
Total Assets 83,788,141 82,723,551 (1,064,019) -1.27%
Capital and Liabilities
Paid up Capital 7,163,055 7,163,395 339 0.00% | Due to Fraction Share
Reserves and surplus 4,531,742 3,377,303 (1,154,439) -25.47% | Due to appropriation of regulatory
and other reserves
Deposits 69,677,722 70,190,080 512,359 0.74% | Due to Reclassification
Borrowings 539,116 - (539,116) -100.00% | Due to Reclassification
Bond and Debenture - - - 0.00%
Other liabilities and provisions 1,876,505 1,992,772 116,266 6.20% | Due to Reclassification
Total Capital and Liabilities 83,788,141 82,723,551 (1,064,590) -1.27%
Statement of Profit or Loss
Interest income 6,819,637 | 6,804,011 (15,626) -0.23% | Due to Reclassification of Income
Interest expense 4,771,172 | 4,771,333 161 0.00% | Due to Reclassification of Expense
Net interest income 2,048,465 2,032,678 (15,786) -0.77%
Fee and commission income 396,283 | 396,815 533 0.13% | Due to Reclassification of Income
Fee and commission expense 21,109 | 27,322 6,213 29.43% | Due to Reclassification of Expense
Net fee and commission income 375,173 369,493 (5,680) -1.51%
Other operating income 208,885 | 249,115 40,230 19.26% | Due to Reclassification of Income
Total operaing income 2,632,523 | 2,651,286 18,764 0.71%
{(‘)‘;‘S’Z;"nem charge/(reversal) for loans and other (31,587) | 31,946 63,533 201.14% | Due to Carve-out on NFRS
Net operating income 2,664,110 | 2,619,340 (44,770) -1.68%
Personnel expenses 786,127 | 801,841 15,714 2.00% | Due to Acturial Valuation
Other operating expenses 453,009 | 460,132 7,123 1.57% | Due to Reclassification
Operating profit 1,424,974 | 1,357,368 (67,606) -4.74%
Non operating income/expense 33,034 | 24,529 (8,505) -25.75% | Due to Reclassification
Profit before tax 1,458,008 | 1,381,897 (76,111) -5.22%
Income tax 429211 | 340,004 (89,207) -20.78% | Change in income and effect of
Deferred Tax
Profit /(loss) for the period 1,028,797 | 1,041,893 13,096 1.27%
Other comprehensive income (19,638) | (8,879) 10,759 -54.79% | Due to effects of above changes
Total comprehensive income 1,009,159 | 1,033,014 23,855 2.36%
Distributable Profit 1,009,159 | 1,041,893 32,734 3.24%
Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 1,028,797 1,041,893 13,096 1.27%
gi‘i&fj‘:’ Regulatory adjustment as per NRB (27,303) 477,170 504,474 -1847.65%
Free profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments 1,001,493 564,722 (436,771) -43.61%
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Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)

As at Third Quarter (13 April 2018) of the Fiscal Year 2017/18

As per NRB Circular No. Bai.Bi.Ni.Bi/Niti/Paripatra/KaKhaGa/10/074/75 and Bai.Bi.Ni.
Bi/Niti/Paripatra/KaKhaGa/23/074/75

As per NFRS
Rs 000

. Previous Corresponding Year
Statement of Financial Position This Ql‘larter Quarter Previtl))us ngrter

Ending . q

Ending Ending
Assets
Cash And Cash Equivalent 3,353 911 1,924,747 3,377,694
Due From NRB And Placements with BFIs 6,723,854 5,244,571 7,552,613
Loan And Advances 62,940,072 57,014,020 45,254,113
Investment Securities 9,036,376 8,548,386 5,273,019
Property And Equipment 436,121 393,978 350,649
Goodwill And Intangible Assets 111,025 12,766 7,419
Other Assets 1,186,783 1,554,466 790,083
Total Assets 83,788,141 74,692,934 62,605,590
Capital And Liabilities
Paid Up Capital 7,163,055 5,969,496 5,969,496
Reserves And Surplus 4,531,742 4,101,608 3,260,720
Deposits 69,677,722 61,859,926 52,279,208
Borrowings 539,116 1,469,278 7,217
Bond And Debenture - - -
Other Liabilities And Provisions 1,876,505 1,292,626 1,088,948
Total Capital And Liabilities 83,788,141 74,692,934 62,605,590
Up to

Statement of Profit or Loss Up to this Up to Previous Corre.:sponding

Quarter Quarter Previous Year

Quarter

Interest Income 6,819,637 4,748,951 3,733,665
Interest Expense (4,771,172) (3,345,250) (2,299,277)
Net Interest Income 2,048,465 1,403,701 1,434,388
Fees and Commission Income 396,283 263,247 278,716
Fees and Commission Expense (21,109) (13,448) (19,422)
Net Fees and Commission Income 375,173 249,799 259,294
Other Operating Income 208,885 114,772 59,433
Total Operating Income 2,632,523 1,768,273 1,753,115
Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loans and Other
Losses 31,587 43,129 524,099
Net Operating Income 2,664,110 1,811,402 2,277,213
Personnel Expenses (786,127) (545,504) (466,701)
Other Operating Expenses (453,009) (301,081) (298,218)
Operating Profit 1,424,974 964,817 1,512,295
Non-Operating Income/Expenses 33,034 60,331 87,119
Profit Before Tax 1,458,008 1,025,147 1,599,414
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Income Tax (429,211) (302,432) (509,059)
Profit /(Loss) For the Period 1,028,797 722,715 1,090,356
Other Comprehensive Income (19,638) (39,591) 71,022
Total Comprehensive Income 1,009,159 683,124 1,161,378
Distributable Profit

Net Profit/ (Loss) as per Profit or Loss 1,009,159 683,124 1,161,378
Add/Less: Regulatory Adjustment as per NRB Directive (7,666) 22,552 (461,004)
Free Profit/ (Loss) after Regulatory Adjustments 1,001,493 705,676 700,374
Ratios

Capital Fund to RWA 13.93% 14.09% 16.15%
Non-Performing Loan (NPL) to Total Loan (As per NRB

Directive) 1.01% 1.24% 1.86%
Total Loss Loan Provision to Total NPL (As per NRB

Directive) 177.12% 152.57% 130.81%
Costs of Funds 8.25% 8.67% 5.93%
Credit to Deposit Ratio (As per NRB Directive) 76.54% 78.69% 78.00%
Base Rate 11.60% 11.62% 11.31%
Basic Earnings Per Share 13.98 15.76 11.73
Diluted Earnings Per Share 13.98 15.76 11.73

Notes to NFRS Compliant Financials as per NRB circular no Bai.Bi.Ni.Bi/Niti/Paripatra/KaKhaGa/23/074/75

On Implementation of NFRS, the previous period's figure have been regrouped / rearranged / restated wherever necessary as per the

format prescribed by NRB.

A A ol

Segment Reporting

Interest income on loans and advances to customers are shown on accrual basis

Taxation shown is as per profit of the financial statement shown as per NRB directive no 4

Loan and Advances include interest receivables and are presented net of impairment charges.

Property and Equipment line item has been inserted and disclosed separately in above financials.

Above figures are subject to change upon otherwise directions of Statutory Auditor and/or Regulatory Authorities.

Personnel Expenses include employment bonus provision calculated at 10 percent of profit calculated as per NRB Directive no. 4

The Bank has identified segment on the basis of nature of banking operations of the bank. The segment identified
are Banking Operations (including loan, deposit and corporate office), Financial Market (Treasury), Card and
Remittance. The bank evaluates profit of its segments before tax.

Segment Results

Particular Banking Treasury Card Remittance Total

Segment Assets 75,032,500 8,724,803 28,398 2,440 83,788,141
Segment Liabilities 75,032,500 8,724,803 28,398 2,440 83,788,141
Interest Income 6,469,293 348,821 1,523 - 6,819,637
Interest Expense (4,750,867) (20,305) - - (4,771,172)
Net Interest Income 1,718,426 328,515 1,523 - 2,048,465
Fees and Commission Income 323,247 2,944 60,298 9,793 396,283
Fees and Commission Expense - (73) (21,037) - (21,109)
Net Fees and Commission Income 323,247 2,872 39,261 9,793 375,173
Net Interest, Fees and Commission Income 2,041,673 331,387 40,784 9,793 2,423,638
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Net Trading Income 33,034 33,034
Other Operating Income 58,531 150,354 - - 208,885
Total Operating Income 2,100,204 514,776 40,784 9,793 2,665,557
Impairment Charge (Reversal)For loans and Other 32,966 (1,379) 31,587
Losses

Net Operating Income 2,133,170 514,776 39,405 9,793 2,697,144
Operation Expense

Personnel Expenses (740,445) (11,747) (23,494) (10,442) (786,127)
Other Operating Expenses (437,171) (5,279) (5,279) (5,279) (453,009)
Operating Profit 955,554 497,749 10,632 (5,928) 1,458,008
Non-Operating Income / (Expenses) - - - - -
Segment Result Before Income Tax 955,554 497,749 10,632 (5,928) 1,458,008

Reconciliation of Net Profit of Financial Statement as per NRB Directive No. 4 and NFRS compliant

Financial Statements

. Corresponding
. This Quarter L2200 Year Previous
Particular . Quarter
Ending Ending Quarter
Ending
Profit after tax as per NRB Directive No. 4 1,001,493 705,676 700,374
Reversal of difference in Interest Income on loans to
customers due to accounting for as per accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with NFRS 11,785 28,685 133,288
Interest Income on Staff Loans accrued as per NFRS 33,283 33,324 3,726
Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loans and Other
Losses 15,519 (11,646) 408,768
Amortization of Prepaid Employee Benefit on staff loan
as per NFRS (33,283) (33,324) (3,726)
Deferred Tax effect on above adjustments - - (152,074)
Net NFRS Adjustments for the year 1,028,797 722,715 1,090,356
Profit after tax as per NFRS 1,028,797 722,715 1,090,356
Difference - - -
Increase/(Decrease) 27,303 17,039 389,982
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UM JADISHE
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VAT No.: 303662965
Chakupat, Kupondole

! ‘ ST Lalitpur, Nepal
S. Dangol & Associates e o .
Chartered Accountants E-mail:- s.dangol.associales7@gmail.com

AUDIT REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
KUMARI CAPITAL LIMITED

We have audited the attached financial statements of M\S Kumari Capital Limited,
Kathmandu, Nepal which comprises the Balance sheet as at Ashad 32, 2075 (July 16, 2018)
and the Income Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity & Cash Flow Statement for the Year
then ended & the summary of significant accounting policies & other explanatory notes.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management. as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanation given to us and based

on the audit work carried out by us, we report that:

1. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
2. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet. Income Statement and the Cash Flow Statement

referred in this report have been prepared in accordance with Companies Act, 2063 and
are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company;

3. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by prevailing law have been kept by
the company so far as appears from our examination of such books:

4, In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements read together with notes on
accounts annexed herewith, are presented fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as of 32", Ashad 2073, the results of its operation and its cash
flows [or the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards and x
comply with Companies Act, 2063.

> To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of account of the company necessary for the purpose of our
audit, we have not come across cases where Board of Directors or any employee of the’
company have acted contrary to the provisions of law, or committed any
misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company.

%gﬂl SEC .

Proprietor

Place: Lalitpur, Nepal
Date: Mangsir 25, 2075 (11 December 2018)
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Accounts

Significant Accounting Policies
The Principal accounting policies are adopted in preparation of financial statements, which have been
consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

1.1

1.2

Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS).

Basis of Preparation
The Financial Statements are presented in NPR, rounded to the nearest Rupee. They are prepared on Accrual
Cost Concept. The Financial Statements are in conformity with NAS and GAAP principles.

Notes to the Accounts

1

Share Capital

Kumari Capital Limited is 100% Subsidiary of Kumari Bank Limited, with paid up capital of NPR.
200,000,000.00 (NPR. Two Hundred Millions) and Authorized capital of NPR. 500,000,000.00 (NPR. Five
Hundred Millions)

Reserve and Surplus
Reserve and Surplus is net loss of NPR. 313,250.00, pre-incorporation expenses for registration and audit
expenses have been incurred.

Income Tax
The net position of the period is loss hence; no Income tax has been recognized.

Related Party Transaction:

a.  100% share capital is investment of its parent company Kumari Bank Limited

b. Bank account of Kumari Capital Limited is opened at Kumari Bank Limited with the value of its total
Share capital investment.

c. Initial costs for registration of the company have been incurred by its parent company; Kumari Bank
Limited.

d.  Other Small transactions are considered as immaterial transactions.

Event after Balance Sheet date.

Kumari Capital Limited; has applied for final approval from Securities Board of Nepal on 6" December
2018.
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